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ACRONYMS & ABBREVIATIONS

Available for Sale

Banco de Desarrollo Econémico y Social de Venezuela
Caribbean Information & Credit Rating Services Limited
Caribbean Community

Caribbean Development Bank

CARICOM Development Fund

Dominica Agricultural Industrial & Development Bank
Loan Management Software produced by FDSL
Eastern Caribbean Central Bank

Eastern Caribbean Dollar

European Investment Bank

Foreign Exchange Equalization Fund

Financial Data Systems Limited

Gross Domestic Product

International Accounting Standards

International Financial Reporting Standards
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
Industrial Estate Unit

National Bank of Dominica

Non-performing

Other Comprehensive Income

Special Fund Resources — Dominica

United States dollar

Values in are in Eastern Caribbean Dollars unless otherwise stated.
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September 30, 2014
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Pursuant to Section 22[1], Chapter 74:03 of the Laws of the Commonwealth of Dominica [1990 Revised Edition] | have the
honour to submit to you, on behalf of the Board of Directors, the Annual Report on the operations and Audited Financial
Statements of the Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2014.

Please accept, Honourable Prime Minister, the assurances of my highest consideration.

Yours sincerely,

DOMINICA AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIAL AND DEVELOPMENT BANK

Mr. Ma1>t‘|':\ Charles
Chairman
Board Of Directors
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am honored to present the Bank’s Annual Report for the financial year ended June
30, 2014.

The Dominican economy faces a more complex and challenging global environment
than before the global financial crisis, when external conditions were generally more
favorable for economic growth.

The Bank is affected by a sustained period of low growth, high credit risk resulting in
increased levels of delinquency and modest growth. Notwithstanding the adverse
impact the bank has already effected changes that willimprove its overall performance.

The country is also addressing these challenges by pursuing appropriate policies to
stabilize the economy that will translate modest growth into sustainable growth.

Prudent fiscal policy has enabled Dominica’s economy to maintain stability that has
caused us to weather the adverse impacts of the global financial crisis. Measures have
been put in place to improve the stability of the financial system so as to enhance the
resilience of the economy.

In keeping with accepted prescriptions for boosting growth momentum the Government
of the Commonwealth of Dominica has been making strategic investments in
infrastructure and human capital. Investments in infrastructure and education are
increasingly recognized as critical to increasing both-short term and long-term growth.
Investments in education are particularly important to addressing the challenges of
increasing competitiveness and growth potential.

Exploration for geothermal energy and a climate change policy demonstrates a
commitment to sustainable use of natural resources and to enhance our competitive
advantage for business development. There are also other ongoing efforts to improve
the business and regulatory environment.

The country is also making progress in tackling the challenge of advancing fiscal
consolidation while preserving economic growth.
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The AID Bank plays an important role in supporting
government’s growth initiatives. It represents government’s
active partnership with the private sector in making
investments which have the capacity to stimulate and sustain
economic growth.

For the year in review, the Bank is pleased to report a cautiously
good performance with loan approvals amounting to $26.92
million, which was 8.98 per cent higher than the previous year’s
total of $24.70 million. Of these approvals 53.58 per cent were
for economics sector projects reflecting the Bank’s focus on
expanding the economy. Social Sector lending as a percentage
of total approvals included student loans which accounted for
17.20 per cent and housing and other loans which accounted
for the remaining 29.22 per cent.

The Bank is also pleased to announce that it recorded a net
profit of $1.12 million which grew by 9.85 per cent compared to
restated net profit of $ 1.03 million in the previous financial year.

The quality of the loan portfolio continues to improve with the
non-performing loans ratio falling to a new low of 10.72 per
cent or 2.56 percentage points lower than the previous year’s
figure of 13.28 per cent.

| take this opportunity to urge all delinquent borrowers to
come in to make a firm commitment to settle your debts. The
bank is firmly resolute in its quest to collect on its bad debts.

The financial year ended June 30, 2014 marked the end of
the strategic plan period which commenced in the financial
year ended June 30, 2010.

A review of the Bank’s performance over the five year period
of the past strategic plan revealed the following achievements:

(@) The average net income during the plan period was $1.42
million, compared to $0.63 for the previous five years.

(b) Total loan approvals for the plan period amounted to
$197.31 million compared to $ 105.85 million approved
in the previous five years. Total disbursements of $152.91

million during the last plan period compares with $99.85
million in the previous five years.

(c) The portfolio size increased to $159.99 million as at June
2014, from $115.08 million as at June 30, 2009.

(d) The portfolio quality improved with a non performing ratio
which declined from 18.66 percent in June 2009 to 10.72
percent in June 2014. Provisions for loan losses as a
percentage of the non performing portfolio rose from 42.48
per cent in June 2009 to 94.94 per cent in June 2014,

(e) The Bank mobilized $102 million from local regional and
international lenders during the plan period, compared to
$10 million in the previous five years.

() The Bank obtained its first credit rating by CariCRIS, a
Caribbean rating agency. The investment grade credit
rating of BBB — was again reaffirmed for the financial year
under review.

(@) The Bank celebrated its 40th anniversary in 2011.

2014 could be characterized as one of the most challenging
years the bank has ever experience in its 43 year history. In
2005 the Government of Dominica commissioned the IMF to
conduct a review of the bank. A report was submitted with
various recommendations one of which was not accepted by
the Government. The Government in its wisdom did not
agree to the privatization of the bank. This was one of the
many brave, courageous, visionary and forward thinking and
wise decisions that our Government has taken in the best
interest of our beloved country. This decision enabled the
customers of the bank to access loans at very concessionary
interest rates and we have seen a more productive and
settled staff.

The bank continues to fulfill its mandate by influencing economic
development. In 2014 we continued to aggressively pursue new
possibilities and to this end we have completed our new strategic
plan for a three year period from 2014 to 2017.
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In its new strategic plan the Bank has decided to focus on
sustainable development as being critical to its future and the
future of the country. Sustainable development requires a
new mindset and way of doing things so as to ensure that
today’s development activities secure a better quality of life
for this generation as well as generations to come. The Bank
recognizes that this new direction will require a comprehensive
policy, education, action, commitment and time.

The new plan also places special emphasis on institutional
strengthening and capacity building in order to be able to
provide excellent service to our customers. The Bank as an
institution must itself operate from a position of strength in order
to be able to contribute to a strong business climate in Dominica.

Other innovations in the strategic plan 2014-2017 include
new products and services which will be rolled out over the
next three years, expansion of our investment portfolio, the
transformation of the industrial estates into a modern
business park, strengthening the AID Bank brand, improving
on our customer service and continuous improvement of the
Bank’s portfolio.

A development bank is expected to play the role of leader
and catalyst by financing new and innovative investments in
the economy. In so doing the bank creates new opportunities
for the entire financial sector. A case in point is the student
loan product which was once synonymous with the AID
Bank but is now being offered by other financial institutions.

The Bank therefore is delighted to roll out three new products,
(1) Startups for Young Business Professionals

(2) Financing for Women in Agriculture

(8) A revolving line of Credit for Business persons

This pioneering role compels the Bank to finance start-ups
and other special target sectors and groups which means
operating on the more risky end of the market. In order to be

sustainable the Bank must therefore improve its risk
assessment and management capabilities.

One of the new initiatives taken in the year in review was the
recruitment of a Risk Officer to take responsibility for
enterprise risk management of the Bank with the officer
taking up his position on July 1, 2014.

| take great pleasure in formally welcoming on staff Mr.
Stephen Lander who is a professional with both local and
regional experience in the financial sector. We have high
expectations of his capacity to build and administer the
bank’s risk management framework.

The Banks achievements over the past financial year are
thanks to the hard work and dedication of the Board of
Directors, Management and Staff of the Bank.

We owe a debt of gratitude to the Government of the
Commonwealth of Dominica for its continued strong support
of the Bank. We identify fully with the theme of government’s
recent budget which is ‘towards expansion of the economy’.
We would also like to express our thanks for the establishment
of the National Employment program (NEP). Through this
program the bank has facilitated some fourteen (14) interns,
all of whom were still with the Bank at the end of the financial
year in review.

We are thankful to our lenders including the Caribbean
Development Bank, the European Investment Bank, Banco
de Desarollo Econdmico y Social de Venezuela, the
CARICOM Development Fund, the Dominica National
Petroleum Company Ltd. (DNPC) some of which provide
both financial and technical assistance to the Bank.

We are here because of our existing and new customers, we
appreciate their patronage and we pledge to focus in the
coming years on delivering consistently superior service quality.

We are grateful for our many development partners and
look forward to continue working with them in order to
accomplish our ambitious work program in the new financial
year. We are passionate about making a difference in the
expansion of our economy.
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

INCOME STATEMENT $(‘000) $(‘000) $(‘000) $ (‘000) $(‘000)
Restated

Interest Income 12,054 12,681 11,107 10,843 10,307
o Interest Expense 4,834 4,848 4,233 3,964 3,699
e Net Interest Income 7,220 7,833 6,874 6,879 6,608
€ Other Income Net 1,804 1,937 2,692 1,590 2,417
© Operating Income 9,114 9,771 9,566 8,469 9,025
o Staff Costs 4,100 3,594 3,506 3,078 3,126
o Administrative Costs 3,178 3,330 3,603 2,805 1,693
o Provisions 721 1,818 1,448 238 2,612
e Net Profit for the Year 1,115 1,028 1,009 2,348 1,594
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
9 Cash and Balances with Central Bank 23 2 2 2 23
0 Deposit with Other Banks 8,421 3,531 8,981 8,961 6,309
O Investments [Net of Impairment] 1,691 2,234 4,236 4,120 4,648
O Investment Properties 31,274 30,888 30,347 30,215 -
9 Loans [Net of Impairment] 148,499 152,404 145,406 129,508 116,549
e Other 9,338 9,013 9,451 9,276 5,009

Total Assets 199,246 198,072 198,423 182,082 132,538
Liabilities
O Deposits 9,393 10,908 11,406 11,223 10,824
0 Borrowings 118,859 114,578 117,203 103,069 82,888
0 Other Liabilities 7,647 10,475 7,916 6,629 6,259
e Equity 63,347 62,111 61,898 61,161 32,567

Total Liabilities and Equity 199,246 198,072 198,423 182,082 132,538
OTHER INFORMATION
Loan Approvals ($000) 26,918 24,700 34,565 36,333 41,910
Loan Disbursements ($:000) 17,477 24,231 33,373 31,293 21,050
Estimated Number of Jobs Created 548 514 826 802 805
Return on Equity 1.80 1.10 1.63 3.84 4.90
Return on Assets 0.57 0.52 0.51 1.29 1.20
Loan Provisions as % of Portfolio 10.18 9.46 8.98 9.20 748
Loan Provisions as % of Non-performing Portfolio 94.94 71.27 58.13 62.87 46.95

s

8 /DAIDB Annual Report 2014







Economic activity in Dominica was mixed in 2013. However,
the data for the first quarter of 2014 indicates positive trends
and there are favourable prospects for the remainder of 2014.

The positive growth recorded in first quarter of 2014 was
supported by the strengthening of global economic activity
which has been underway in 2013 and first quarter of 2014.

In 2013, there was an increase in output in the manufacturing
sector, while activity in the construction sector declined.

For the period January to December 2013 the manufacturing
sector recorded growth in the production of beverages to
141,116 cases, an increase by 19.39 per cent relative to
2012. There was also an estimated increase by 2.82 per cent
in the production of chemicals and related products to
1,655.7 tonnes, primarily as a result of increased demand for
soap in regional markets.

In the agricultural sector, it is estimated that production of
non-banana crops and livestock increased in 2013 relative to
2012. However, over the same period banana production
from leading banana exporting companies declined by 29.29
per cent and export revenue is estimated to have declined by
31.25 per cent.

There was a reduction in construction activity by 22.45
percent in 2013, and a corresponding decline in the value of
those starts by 27.02 per cent.

In 2013, the performance of the tourism industry was mixed.
Stay over visitors increased slightly by 1.05 per cent. However,
cruise-ship arrivals declined leading to an overall decline in
total visitors by 10.26 per cent from 342,732 in 2012 to
307,552 in 2013. Nonetheless, there was an estimated
increase in total visitor expenditure by 9.2 per cent to XCD
224.49 million.

Estimates of economic activity in the first quarter of 2014
indicate  strengthened  performances in  agriculture,
construction and tourism.

Banana production of 330 tonnes in the first quarter of 2014
was 13.5 per cent lower than production in the corresponding
period of 2013. The output of non-banana crops including
cocoa, coffee and hot peppers were estimated to have
increased, indicating positive responses to diversification
efforts. There have also been estimated increases in livestock
production resulting from farmers’ expectations of the
opening of the pork and poultry abattoir.

In the first quarter of 2014 the number and value of
construction starts rose by 8.6 per cent and 3.6 per cent

respectively. This increase partly reflected public sector
capital spending for road development, water supply
networks, the geothermal energy initiative, an abattoir, for
pork and poultry, an agricultural centre and coffee plant and
other construction work.

There was an improvement in the cruise-ship segment of the
tourism sector in the first quarter of 2014, with a 37.3 per
cent increase in cruise visitor arrivals to 165,224, Stay-over
visitor arrivals is estimated to have declined by 2.2 per cent to
19,850, principally as a result of lower tourism demand from
the French West Indies, which is Dominica’s largest sub-
category of stay over visitors.

In the manufacturing sector, estimates for the first quarter of
2014 indicate that the volume of beverage production
increased by 14.5 per cent related to increased demand from
external markets. Production of chemicals and related
products were lower than the corresponding period in 2013,
with reductions of 7.1 per cent for soap and 3.4 per cent for
paint and varnishes.

Preliminary first quarter figures for 2014 indicate that the
merchandize trade deficit narrowed to $ 104.6 million from
$118.2 million in the corresponding period of 2013.

There was a decline by 9.6 per cent in the value of imports
and a marginal increase in the total value of exports, partly
related to the increased value of soap exports.

The fiscal operations of the central government yielded a
narrowing of the surplus on the current account to $ 11.1
million in the first quarter of 2014 from $17.3 million in the
same period of 2013 resulting from lower current grants. Tax
revenue rose by 8.1 per cent to $ 70.6 million, consistent with
the recovery in the local economy. Current expenditure
contracted slightly by 0.7 per cent to $ 80.2 million.

Domestic credit, which amounted to $ 704.8 million, fell by
2.4 per cent in the first quarter of 2014. Liquidity in the
commercial banking system rose during this period.

The consumer price index declined by 0.6 per cent during the
first quarter of 2014. In the corresponding period of 2013
there was also a decline of 0.3 per cent.

Prospects for the rest of 2014 favour an increase in economic
activity led by positive trends in agriculture, construction and
tourism. Downside risks include adverse weather, further
exposure to plant disease in the agricultural sector and
delayed grant receipts.
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THE PERFORMANCE OF DAIDB

LENDING ACTIVITIES

Approvals

For the twelve month period ended June 30, 2014, 437
loans were approved with a total value of $26,917,954.
Industry loans valued at $10,788,923 and Housing loans
valued at $5,708,513 combined accounted for 61.29 per
cent of the total approvals for the period.

Cumulative loan approvals were higher than that recorded
for the financial year ended June 30, 2013 by 8.98 per cent
when a total of 24,699,988 was approved.

As at June 30, 2014, approvals in the Industry, Education
and Personal and Other sectors exceeded their projections.

Disbursements

For the financial year ended June 30, 2014 disbursements
totalled $17,477,224. This amount was lower than the actual
disbursements for the period ended June 30, 2013 by 27.87
per cent, when an amount of $24,230,741 was disbursed.

Disbursements for the period ended June 30, 2014 were
made primarily in the Housing sector with a value of
$4,491,401 or 25.70 per cent, Education sector with a value
of $3,894,984 or 22.29 per cent and the Tourism sector
valued at $2,981,745 or 17.06 per cent.

Disbursements for the period ended June 30, 2014 were
short of the budgeted disbursement by $19,614,978 or
52.88 per cent.

Rescheduling

For the financial year ended June 30, 2014, ninety (90) loans
valued at $20,945,136 were approved for rescheduling. This
value was comparable to loans rescheduled in the financial
year ended June 2013, when seventy (70) loans valued at
$20,915,757 were approved for rescheduling.

Rescheduled loans by sector comprised of fifty-one (51)
loans in the Education sector valued at $2,219,661,
seventeen (17) loans in the Housing sector valued at
$1,354,694, eleven (11) loans in the Industry sector valued
at $12,744,654, three (3) loans in the Agriculture sector
valued at $93,661, three (3) Tourism loans valued at
$4,414,840 and five (5) loans in the Personal and Other
sector valued at $117,626.

Figure 1
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Figure 2
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Non-Performing Loans

As at June 30, 2014 non-performing (NP) loans totalled
$17,146,526.74 or 10.72 per cent of total loans outstanding
of $159,993,572.56.

For the corresponding period of June 2013, NP loans totalled
$21,555,028.95 or 13.28 per cent of total loans outstanding
of $162,319,410.73.

The Non-Performing ratio improved by 2.56 percentage
points over the same period last year, due to a reduction in
the non-performing loans from $21.56M to $17.15M.

The Tourism, Housing and Education Sectors were the best
performing sectors for the Bank, with 1.69 per cent, 6.76 per
cent and 10.00 per cent of NP ratios respectively; whereas,
Agriculture, Personal & Other and Industry accounted for the
highest NP ratios of 50.48 per cent, 19.67 per cent and
14.75 per cent, respectively.

FUNDING

In the year under review, through the support of the
Government of the Commonwealth of Dominica the Bank
signed a loan agreement with one of its funding agencies and
obtained a few local credit lines. Activities during the year
with primary lending sources are summarised below.

Special Mortgage Programme Funded by Petro Caribe
The Bank requested a new line of credit for on-lending for the
purpose of low-income housing. The Bank received word
that an amount of $ 2 million was approved. However, this
amount was not received during the financial year.

Caribbean Development Bank (CDB)

The CDB appraised an amount of USD 500,000 for an energy
efficiency line of credit pilot project. This loan was expected
to be presented to the Board of Directors for approval early in
the financial year commencing July 1, 2014. This is the first
loan considered by the CDB for the AID Bank without a
government guarantee.

The Bank organised two workshops, both well attended, in
partnership with the Caribbean Technological Consultancy
Services of the CDB. One was on marketing techniques for
small hotel facilities.

The second was a workshop on renewable energy (RE) and
energy efficiency (EE) initiatives. The aim of this workshop
was to expose persons to the available options and financial
benefits of such initiatives and to promote the Bank’s
concessionary financing for such projects.

CARICOM Development Fund [CDF]

In the financial year in review the Bank signed the loan
agreement with the CDF for USD 4 million and received its
first disbursement.

European Development Bank (EIB)

The Bank has continued to drawdown funds from the EIB
and begun making some progress in reducing its portfolio at
risk ratio in its efforts to satisfy finance covenants of the EIB.

Bank’s Credit Rating

The CariCRIS conducted its annual supervision visit during
the financial year. The regional credit rating agency has
reaffirmed the Bank’s credit rating of BBB — or “adequate
creditworthiness”.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM

The Management Information systems Unit continued its
drive to keep critical systems up to date in order to improve
operational efficiency and reduce costs.

During the last financial year, the Bank embarked on a project
to upgrade the Loans Administrations system. The new system
is expected to provide a more integrated loans information
system which will allow for easier generation of information
required for effective decision-making. The initial stage involved
user testing and training and initial data conversion.

The project will continue into the next financial year as the
Bank moves to the phase of parallel testing. This phase is for
the purpose of ensuring consistency between the two
versions of the software.

The upgrade is part of a larger process of integrating all
systems as the Bank seeks to ensure interoperability, reduce
duplication and improve its monitoring capabilities.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The AID Bank has been honoured by the National Employment
Program (NEP) to be the employer of choice for fourteen
qualified young persons who are registered as interns.

The Interns have been with the Bank from December 2013
and have acquired new skills and competencies and the
Bank in turn has benefited from their service and performance
over the period.

Special recognition is given to the following interns for their
valued contributions to AID Bank and FDSL during the latter
six months of the financial year under review: Ayeola George,
Mervin Henry, Dahreo Tyson, |ke Bannis, Karren Winston,
Shannon Laudat, Karen Riviere Cuffy, Ayodele Roache,
Neithel Matthew, Verlena Henderson, Sherese Magloire.
FDSL: Jozreel Laurent, Vernell Sylvester and Kemuel Lodrick.

The Bank was engaged during the year in determining the
new strategic direction for the next five years. This was
performed collaboratively by management which fostered
greater appreciation of the diversity of skills and the benefits
of working together as a cohesive team.

In determining its strategic direction the Bank decided to
recruit the services of an Enterprise Risk Officer in order to
manage the implementation of all aspects of the risk function
including implementation of processes, tools and systems to
identify, assess, measure, manage, monitor and report risks.
The Officer will be engaged in the new financial year.

To ensure that the Bank has the competencies to build and
sustain a high level of performance the Bank spent over one

AID Bank Interns 2013/14

hundred and eighty thousand dollars in training and
development of staff. The training was obtained in
Management Skills Development, Customer Service, Safety
Training, Advanced Executive Assistant Management, Credit
Risk Management, Health Education, Certified Underwriting
Program Module Il, Information Technology Audit and Control,
Recoveries, Risk Assessment and Anti Money Laundering,
Credit Risk for Management and Staff, Credit Appraisal, and
Corporate Governance.

Two employees resigned from their positions in the middle of
the financial year. One was from the Industrial Estate Unit and
the other from Recoveries Department. They have both
moved on to commence their own enterprises.

AID Bank’s Staff are committed and have provided excellent
service, support and focus in advancing the mission of the
Bank. They take pleasure in enabling the success of our
clients and stakeholders. Effective HR management allows
staff to contribute to the overall success of the Bank and
make AID Bank a great place to work.

Staff activities were encouraged during the year to foster
cordial relations within the Bank. One of these activities was
the creation of sports teams who competed against other
organisations in football and basketball. Staff members also
networked with the other Banks and Private companies at a
shared booth at the Windsor Park during Creole Festivities,
Carnival and Cricket.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

With the continued global thrust to employ a risk-based
approach to internal audit function, the Bank’s internal audit
work program for the financial year 2013/2014 continued to
be driven by areas of higher risk. Quarterly audit continued in
the high risk areas while other areas were audited annual or
on a rotational basis.

The internal audit function remains committed to providing
independent and objective assessments on the
appropriateness of the organization’s activities and acts as a
catalyst for change, advising or advocating improvements to
enhance policies, procedures and practices of the Bank.

During the financial year 2013/2014, 21 audits and 10 reviews
were conducted on various departments, procedures and
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processes. There was a remarkable focus on follow-up on
previous audit recommmendations during this financial year. There
have been notable efforts fromm management in the update and
development of various policies and procedures for improvement
and enhancement of the internal controls of the Bank.

The Internal Auditor continued to function as Compliance Officer
(Ag) during the financial year. The money laundering and
compliance manual was updated to include a focus on risk
assessment as outlined in the recently amended 2014 Proceeds
of Crime Act. A money-laundering risk assessment form was
developed for implementation in the new financial year.

The Internal Auditor participated in numerous training
programmes to keep abreast of developments within the field.
This serves to improve the performance and value-added by
the internal audit function by seeking ways of finding the
balance among risk, cost and value. It is intended that in the
new financial year, internal audit would place greater emphasis
on aligning its activities to the new strategies of the Bank to
position itself as a value-driven strategic asset for the Bank.

INDUSTRIAL ESTATE UNIT (IEU)

The Industrial Estate Unit is separate from the core lending
function of the Bank, but it supports the Bank’s overall
objectives of promoting and influencing economic
development. The unit provides a platform for expansion of
the economy through the provision of affordable space for
investors engaged in  manufacturing, warehousing,
information, commmunication and technology (ICT) companies
including Call Centres, and other service industries.

In fostering local industries the unit also promotes exports
and creates employment opportunities for the citizens of the
Commonwealth of Dominica.

Currently at the Industrial Estate, 773 persons are employed
with Clear Harbor, a Call Centre being the largest employer with
a total of 616 employees. The Bank’s Industrial Estate continues
to be home to one of the largest employers on Island.

The Industrial Estate consists of lands and buildings in
Canefield, Portsmouth, Jimmit and Grand Bay. There are
twenty (20) buildings with a total floor space of 147,140 sq.
ft. which have been sub-divided into thirty six (36) units
ranging from 780 sq. ft. to 21,000 sqg. ft. Twenty-four (24)

tenants currently rent thirty (33) of the thirty-six units at the
Industrial Estate with some tenants occupying more than one
unit. Twelve (12) tenants rent land on Hertford Estate in Jimmit
and at Canefield.

The Canefield Industrial Estate is the most developed of the
four (4) Industrial Estates accounting for eighteen (18) out of
the twenty (20) buildings. At present three (3) units of 1,200
sq. ft each are vacant and available at the building in Geneva,
Grand Bay.

Plans are at an advanced stage to have all vacant space
occupied by the end of the second quarter of this financial year.

Renovation works have been undertaken in some units, with
the major retrofitting of 6000sq.ft nearing completion to
house major printing operations. The relocation of some
tenants continues, thus ensuring that space can be utilized
effectively for the generation of income.

The IEU’s office is housed on the Canefield Estate with a
complement of eight staff members who manage the daily
functions of the Industrial Estate and high priority is being
placed on property maintenance and customer satisfaction.

Rental collection continues to be of major concern to the
department considering that this is its primary source of
income which is utilized for the general maintenance of the
buildings and other programs. A review of the collection
strategy was undertaken which has resulted in an
improvement in that area.

During this fiscal year 2014/2015 the new strategy being
considered promotes a new perspective on the IEU as a
platform for generating economic activity for the country and
the IEU must therefore become a highly attractive option for
the location of new business. The vision for the Canefield
Industrial Estate is the creation of a modern commercial
centre in Dominica.

Some specific strategies have been devised with the following
major objectives:

» Upgrading of existing Buildings and landscape

» Improving the financial performance

» Introducing a new proactive, customer centered
orientation

» Greening of the Industrial Estates.
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FINANCIAL DATA
SYSTEMS LIMITED (FDSL)

This financial year saw a formalization of the internal structure and systems within
FDSL as the company prepared to launch the newly redeveloped DPAC Loans
Administration System, a software described as being “fit for purpose” and best suited
for development finance institutions (DFI).

Three interns were identified to assist the company in the fulfilment of its objectives in
the new financial year. These are the same promising young, innovative programmers
who were employed for the development and programming of the system.

The staff will be fully responsible for the provision of technical support to the software
clients. It is expected that these staff members will provide the user support and
continual system upgrade that will promote a high level of customer satisfaction.

The system has been fully tested on several desktop and server operating systems and
on the back-end, is continuously being updated with the latest security to keep the
platform secure and up-to-date.

Interest in the DPAC Loans Administration System continues to grow as software
demonstrations were conducted with various stakeholders. It is instructive that at least
one institution has decided on DPAC after reviewing several other “state-of-the -art”
systems. This shows that the system provides the functionality that is needed by
development finance institutions without the burden of functionalities that are not
applicable to DFls.

Parallel testing projects were initiated in two different institutions as we seek to
customize the software to fit the special needs of development finance institutions. By
the end of the next financial year, it is expected that all existing users will have either
transitioned to the upgraded system or be in the process of transitioning.
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The AID Bank’s Corporate Social Responsibility over the course of the last Financial
Year 2013/14 reflects the Bank’s growing diversity in building corporate relationships.

As a development finance institution, strengthening the bond with affiliates,
stakeholders, as well as existing and potential customers within the sectors that we
serve continues to be as rewarding as the Bank’s commitment to social, intellectual or
humanitarian causes.

Specifically, in the financial year 2013/14, the Bank expended over XCD $92,600.00 to
support the innovative spirit of young entrepreneurs and strengthen some of the critical
sectors which are fundamental to the viability and social balance of our economy.
These sectors include Agriculture, Tourism and Energy, Education and Sports.

The Bank is pleased to be associated with the Dominica Youth Business Trust, and
notes that some of Trust’s beneficiaries are credible clients within the Bank’s diverse
loan Portfolio.

The Bank’s recognition of Dominica State College Student Denssy J. James of Delices,
as the recipient of the first ever Robert Elford Henry Scholarship for Agriculture was a
proud moment in the Bank’s history as a Responsible Corporate Entity.

As an indigenous finance institution, the Bank’s positive response towards the
participation of 2013 national Queen Leslassa Armour Shillingford at the Miss World
Pageant, in Indonesia was a worthwhile investment towards the international visibility
that our nature isle received.

Time spent with senior citizens, the incarcerated, and those with special needs,
during the course of the financial period in question, enhanced our perception of the
untapped potential within these groups and reinforced our commitment to give back
to our community.

In summary, the year reminds us that building relationships is more important than the
pure business of buying, marketing and selling. It reinforces our objective to facilitate
social and economic advancement in sustainable ways for a great percentage of those
whose paths we cross.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

NET PROFIT

The AID Bank recorded net profit of $ 1.13 million in the
financial year ended June 30, 2014. This figure was 9.85 per
cent higher than the $ 1.03 million net profit recorded in 2013
as indicated in the Table below.

Total comprehensive income was $ 1.12 million for the year
under review, after utilization from the foreign exchange loss
account of $11,635.

INCOME

EXPENSES

Financial Expenses of $ 4.83 million were 0.28 per cent lower
than the previous year’s $ 4.85 milion due mainly to a
reduction in bank charges and interest paid on fixed deposits.

Total staff expenses of $ 4.10 million increased by 4.08 per cent.

Administrative Expenses of $ 1.72 million decreased by 12.68
per cent over the previous year.

Total operating expenses of $ 12.11 million were more than
the $ 11.77 million recorded in the previous financial year by
2.89 per cent.

Total income recorded for the financial year was $13.95
million which was 4.59 per cent lower than the $14.62 million
achieved in 2013.

Interest income decreased by 4.94 per cent and other
operating income also decreased by 2.25 per cent from the
previous financial year.

Interest Income

Other Operating Income
Total Income

Interest Expense

Staff Costs

Administrative Expenses
Factory Sheds Expenses
Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Net income from Operations before the following income/(charges):

Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange

Impairment Losses on Loans and Receivables

Impairment (losses)/gains on available for sale investments
Net Profit

Foreign Exchange Loss Utilization

Total Comprehensive Income

2014 EC$ 2013 EC$
12,054,137 12,681,098
1,894,315 1,937,856
13,948,452 14,618,954
(4,834,472 (4,848,000)
(4,100,015) (3,594,122)
(1,715,521) (1,964,659)
(408,443) (383,264)
(625,784) (580,063)
(428,428) (402,429)
(12,112,663) (11,772,537)
1,835,789 2,846,417
(721,288) (1,818,210)
15,000 -
1,129,501 1,028,207
(11,635) (8,920)
1,117,866 1,019287
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ASSETS

AtJune 30, 2014, assets totalled $ 199.25 million representing
a 0.59 percentage increase from last year's $ 198.07 million.

The major component of assets, net loans and advances
valued at $ 148.50 million registered a 2.56 per cent decrease
from last year's XDC 152.40 milion and adequately offset
total long-term liabilities of $ 118.86 million. Net loans and
advances comprised of gross loan balance of XDC 159.99
million - (2013: XDC 162.32m) and interest receivable of XDC
4.80 million — (2013: XDC 5.45m) less loan provision of XDC
16.29 million — (2013: 15.36m). The long-term debt to equity
ratio of 1.88:1 was within the suggested range for the industry
of 4:1.

Cash in current and operating account, and short-term
investments totalled $ 8.42 million, which was 138.55 per
cent more than last year's $ 3.53 million.

Other receivables of $ 1.05 million were 4.95 per cent less
than last year's $1.11 milion. Other receivables include
insurance premiums arrears, legal and other fees paid on
behalf of clients and rental arrears.

Net investments in treasury bills, Government debentures
and shares in companies totalled $ 32.75 million, of which $
31.27 million represents Investment Properties of the
Industrial Estate Unit (IEU). Net Investments were 0.48 per
cent less than last year’s $ 32.96 million

Net total fixed assets of $ 8.28 million were 4.81 per cent
higher than last year’s $ 7.90 million.

LIABILITIES

Total liabilities were $ 135.90 million, which was 0.05 per cent
less than last year's $ 135.96 million.

Due to customers was $ 9.39 million which was 13.88 per cent
lesser than the $ 10.91 million in the previous financial year.

Borrowed funds of $ 118.86 million and registered a net
increase of 3.74 per cent from last year’s $ 114.58 million.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Shareholders’ Equity of $ 63.35 million increased by 1.99 per
cent from last year’s $ 62.11 million.

Retained Earnings of $ 7.02 million increased by 29.58 per
cent from last year's $ 5.42 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Darcctors of
DOMINICA AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIAL
AND DEVELOPMENT BANK

We have sudibed the accompanying fnancial ststements of Dominka Agricultural Industrial and
Development Bank (the Bank), which comprise the staternent of financis] position as at June 30, 2014, and
the: statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the vedr ended, and noles,
comprising 8 semmary of significant sccounting polickes and other explanatiory nformation.

Blanagement's Responsibility for the Financtal Statements

Mamagement is responsible for the preparstion and fnir presentation of these financial Rabements in
sccondance with Internatiosal Fimancial Reporiing Standands, and for such intemal coptrol s management
deiermines Is necessary 1o enable the preparstion of flinamcial siatemvents that are free from masterial
misstatements, whether due o fraed or enmor

Awidiion’ Responsibility

Chur responsibility is 15 express & opnion on these fimancinl statements bated on our andi. We conducted
our andil in scocondance with International Standands on Anditing. Those standards requare that we comply
wilh relevant ethical requirements and plan and perfoam the audit 16 obtain reasonabibe ssusrance whelber
the financial stalements are free from material misstatement.

An amdil mvelves performing procedures to obtain sudit evidence abowt the amounts and disclomeres 0 the
fimancial statements. The procodures seleched depend on oor judgment, including the asseisment of the
ritks of material misstatement of the financial ststements, whether dwe to freud or ermor. In making those
risk sssessments, we consider internal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparation and falr preseniation of the
fimancial stalesnents in order 1o design sudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinkoa on the effectiveness of the entiy®s imtemnal coatral, An sudit also
imghades evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of sccounting
estimates made by managamnent, 55 well as evalisatmg the overall presentation of the financial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1= sufficient and appropriate 1o provide s basis for car
audil opinicn

Opinicn

In our opinicn, the financial stabements present fairly, n all material respects, the fnancial position of the
Bank as at Juse 30, 2014, amd of its fimancial performance and it cash flows for the vear then emded in
accordance with Imermational Fenancial Reponing Standards

:_ b1-.'I----| LR =)
L —— — e —— ) i RS i R P =1 [ w—
— — i A
= = o Smm—— e

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

INDEFENDENT AUINTORS" REPORTY

T the Board of Durecton af
POMINICA AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIAL
AND DEVELOPMENT BANK [com 'd

Emphasis of Matter

We draw abienison 1o the foct that the Bank has imvesiments of 5216000 i Clico International Life
Insusstice Limited & subsadiary of CL Fimancial Limited. Thas growap is curmrently encountermg finamcial
difficulities amd there i uncenainiy regarding the adequacy of the impairment provition agasmst thi
amound, It = nol possible to determing with o reasomable degres of cemainty whether amy additinmsl
impainmenl provisioss are necessary for “Deposits with banks and other financial mstrations™ as
dencribed in Nobe @ in the financial stalements

“hartered Accousianis
Oictipber 29, 2014

Antigua snd Bazinada

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

{Expreed by Eauern Carfbbean Dalfar

As restaied

Notes 2013
Anscis
Cush and balances with Central Bank T 25
Treasury bills § 1,060
[eposats with banks and other fimanial
{nstEutions o 1G4 B
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 1] 152,403 959
Avallahleslfor-zale inveximents 12 1 40K 299
Irvestment propsribes I3 30,888, 365
Property, plant and equipment 4 7904074
L het assets 15 I, 1 2
Todal Asscts 198,072 321
Liabilities
Bank ovendmifi ] 1,832,124
Dhae bk GiislGimers 17 10,57 B3H
Baormovwed funds I8 114,577,735
Cither liabilities ) 643235
Total Liabilitks |25 Tl B30
Sharchobiders' Equity
Share capiial ] | 47,970,205
Heserves 22 B, T21 40
Retained cmmings 5.417.600
Tatal Eqguity a2 01131
Total Lishilities snd Shareholders’ Eguity 198072323
Approved by the Octobar 29, 2014

MARTIN
CHATRMAN

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

floygressedd in Ewstern Coribbemn Dollar

As reslated

Nots | 2014 2013

Interest income 23 5 12,054,137 12,681,008
Imicrest capense .k o AEMAT {4, B4R 000 §

Net interest ingome T.210.665 T.R13,008

Diher aperating income L] 1894515 L9317 256
Oiher aperating expenses 2% (T2TE 191 (6,924 537 )
Impairment losses on lopns and receivables (721,288) i1,508.210)

et profit for the year 1114500 1,028,207

(rther Comprehensive Income: -

Unrealizcd gain on investimenis 15, (00 -
Foreign exchange biss ulilization {11635} {5,920 )

Tutal comprehensive income 5 LT 866 [0 e )

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

i Exgresaed br Eastern Cavibbeas Doflfues)

Balumce as of June M, 20012
ws previously stated
Prior peried ndjustment

Balpnee s of June HE, 2002
ns resimied

Profin fir the year

Prior period adjustment

Met Income or the viear as
restated

Forcign exchanpe loss
witlization

Total l.'nm;ll‘rh:n'lh'c
imgumg

Trunsfer to staiutory reserve
Transfer to foreign exchanps
equalization Funsd
Adjustiment fof prior year's
recchvable reportcd 0 incomc
Dividends on ordinary shares

Balance ns of June M, 20013
Profit for the vear
Urnerealizssd ganin on availabls
for sale invesimenis
Comprebensive Income
Forcign exchange loss
utilization

Tatal comprehensive
Imenme

Transfer bo SEULOrY feserve
Transfer from forcign
exchange equalieation fund
Transter from deéferred
meome reversad m JXEN 0
as uncumed

Brividends on ondimary shares

Balopee as af June ML, 20014

Kites
5
5
33
7
S
»
3

Share Retained
Capital Reserves Earnings Tistal
47,570,205 B A60,TE] 5467275 ] HUE 263
- - (32957100 (329 5T
U | e | #4600, 781 4957 TS O] sk i3
. . | 297082 | 297082
- - (268875} (2GR ETS)
0 2% 20T | JOXR N
= (5.520) (=920
= B, 920 1 A2 20T | 9 XRT
- 257052 (257052}
- 14,581 (14.581)
“ . (26,589) (26, 589)
{ 2500 (M} {2500 (ulhy
47,970,205 8,723,496 54176590 62,011,391
- - 1.1 145010 I 014500
- 12,000 - | 5 e}
= (11.,635) [11,635)
, i3n% 1114500 I.117 86d
- 2TRA2E (278,625)
- (64E.9730) 45,920
- - AT, 730 AGT. T30
- - | 250 (KN} {250 M)
47970, 2015 B.350.560 7020222 63,346,993

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

rfxpresyed i Eavpern CarBbear Dl As restated
Nobes 4 LR
Canli Maias Troin apsrallag detly e
Met peoiil Bor the yoar 1014500 128 207
Adgustmeonts for:
Impuarmien kesaes om Joans and recervalilis TI.2RS | BIE 200
Deeprecistion 14 428,424 402 424
Unrealized forcipn exchange (painploss T4, TH0 i 136404 )
Unsealized (gaini on available-For-aale inveitmenla 2, ALHN -
Lowes Y gaimh o dhinpaissal of macts 117222 1E5R2
Interest anid simalar income {13,054, 137) (12651 008
Drterest cuperise and simalar charges 483447 4,848 CoH)
Caih Menws belore chasges in operating assets and Habilities (4 5k AR ) 4757074
{Change in loams and advances W customens 254137 192133760 )
Change in deposits wilk hanks anid oiher (isancial instilisions i 1. 4T90KT) TH1A0
Change in other siscts A Ml {222.393)
Change in dus ko cuslomers P1514,453) I RI3 50T §
Change in other liahilies i91E 725) A7 55l
Cash maed in aperatiens {208 TH) IE240. 04T}
Inlerest recervid 12,70 Gk 1RG50 316
Inigrest paid (4,745 403 5 212 9%
Nt cashs Frommsed in) sperating sctivitles ek A5 A0 T |

Cosh Maws from ievesting schivities

Purchase of Invesiment property 13 [ELRET TN (541,014
urchass of properiy, plant and aguipmsm 4 iR, AR (275400
Mol cash uied in imvesting ackvities 1095 264) iHlB42] )
Cash Manas from linancisg sctiyities

Borrowed fands 17 e, 097 ) TRILRES
Repaymeni of borrowed flamds L12,658 G ) (00,147 1305
DRvidends pasd i+l (MK ) -
Forcign exchange ulilization {1 1.635]

Mot canh Tromd (wsed In} Bnancing activithes 4.509.402 P N ]
Net deerease in cash amil cash equivaboais 50TT. 150 55T IET
ol and cosh equivolents, beginning ol vesr _i_l_d_l_'ﬂ.!m 3 T_,_I'Fil"""F
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year Tihj 3657372 WA T

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(Expreased in F:n-h'rn Carilsbemr Dinlars

fenl

fi

f&x

Heporting Entity:

Dominica Agricultural Indisinsl and Development Bank (the Bank] s 0 corporate body established
under Chapter 74:03 of the revised laws of the Commonwealth of Dominica, with is principal
objectives being 1o promote and inflvence the economic development of the Commonwealth of
Diominiea and to mobilize funds for the purpose of such developmeni.

The Bank’™s principal place of business and registered office is located of ithe comer of Charles
Avenue and Bawles Lane, Goodwall, Commomsealth of Dominica,

Basis of Preparation:

Stentramreret nf Compiomoe:
These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Finaneinl Keporing
Suandarnds (IFRSs)

The Bank's finangial stmements were approved for ssuance by the Board of Directors on Ogtober
2%, 2004,

Havis of Measirearens:
These lnancial statements are preparcd wder the historical cos1 basis except for the following
material items in the statements of finangial position;

= Aovailable for sale financial assets ane measured ot fair value,
* Investment property is measured at fair value
*  Financinl instruments ot fair valee through profit or loss are measured at fie valise,

Lise onf Expfmante v Suclgemmens!

The r.n,:Funlil:m of these nancial statemenis I.'\'Illulli.'l'-l'llll-[_'r' with TFRS TCL|UIrEs the use of cerlam
critical accounting cstimates, It also requines manggement to exercise ils padgment in the process of
applyving the Hank’s sccounting policies.  The areas involving a higher depgree of judpment or
complexity, or oreds where assumplions and estimales gre signilicant to the financial statements ane
disclosed in Mote 6,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

tExpreased in F:r.l-h'rn Carifsbemar Daoliers

i Acqubsition of Business Unii:

The Bank acquired the met operations of Indusinal Esiate Unit (IELY on June 30, 2001 from the
Government of Dominica, The Bank owna 1005 of the 1EL which operates as a scparate busingss
unit sinee 1 provedes senvices that are subject to nsks and retums that are different from the nommal
opertions of the Bank.

The cost of the acquisition i3 measured as the falr value of the assets and hobilities acquired an the

date of the exchange, and the equity instruments issuexd plus costs direetly antnbutable 10 the
acguisitson,  The excess in fair vahee of the net asscis of TEU over the consideration transfermed
resulied i o bargmin purchase which was recorded as negative poodwill,

Related trmsactions, balances and unrenlized gaks om transactons between the two entities ane
climinated,  Unnealized losses are also elimmated unless the tramsaction provides evidence of
impairment of the psset transfemed,

4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

fird Avkwprrbon of Yew stadareds;
The following siandards, amendmenis and interpretaiions became effective in 2003 and are
relevant 1o the Bank!

= Amendmient o 1A% | ‘Financial statements presentation’ regarding oiher comprchensive
meome or loss became effective July 1, 2002, The mam chonge resulting rom this
amendment is o requirement for the Bank o group items presented in “other comprehensive
ingomic’ (CRC1h om the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable w poofit or loss
subsequently (reclassilfication adjusimenis), As @ nesult of the amendments 1o 1AS 1, ihe
Hank hais maosdiDed ihe presemiation ol veins m O, {"m'rlrumlnc miormation has been
repeesented pecordmgly.

= Amendment o IFRS 7 Disclhisure; Offsctting. Financinl Asscis and Fmancial Labilitics
became effective January 1. 2003 includes disclosure requirements. for linencial mstruments
whicl were ofF set and the nel amaount reported oo the sisement of linancial position.

. IFRS 13, “Fair valoe measarement” eflective January 1, 2003, aims w improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair salue and a sigle souaree of
Fair valie measurement and dislosure requirements. for use across [FRSs,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

DAIDB Annual Report 2014/ 31




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

ﬁiqlmud' i Earstern € aribbeas Dolfars)
4, Summary of Slgniflcant Accounting Policles: (oo 'l

il Brancbarady, Amerdments and fnferprefotions sl bt nor ver Effeciive;
The Tellovwing standard, amensdmenis and interpretations have been ssoed and are mandatory for the
accpunting peniods beginming after January 1, 2004 or later periods and are expected 1o be relevant
Loy the: Bank.,

. IFRS 9, ‘Financial instrumends’, addresses the classification, measurement and recogrition
of fmancial sssets and financial labilities, IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
amended in Ogtoher 2000, 1t replaces the paris of TAS 39 that relate o the classification and
measurcment of linancial mstruments. [IFRS 9 requires financial assets o be classified inbo
twio measurcmenl calepores: those measeied os atl fair value and those measured al
amaortised cost, The determimation is made ot izl recognition, The classafication depends
on the entitys business model for munaging its financial mstruments and the contractiml
vash Nosw charmcteristics of the mstrument. The standand 15 not applicabde anil af least
Jamuary 1, 2005, The Bank will asscss [FRS %'s impact pricr to implementation.

. Amendments 10 [AS 32, Financial [nsiruments: Presentation on asset and linbiliny ofTfsening
animis i nddrm |r|4:1.1mih|!¢n4;ic1 1 curmeril [l:lnl;li-.:-c 'u.lum :ln'l]}'mg Ihc’ :ﬂT\:IIth crler o
Financial Instruments. Clarification i provided on the meaning of *curremtly has a begally
enforceable npght of set-olf and that some gross setilement systems may be considersd
equivalent to pet setlement. The amendments are effective for peniods heginning afier
Jamanary 1, 20014,

fci el et Casly Egeivalenis;
Cosh and cosh equivilents comprise cash balances and ovendrafl aml deposits with natuntices three
(3} momihs or less from the date of scquisition that are subgect bo an msignificant nsk of changes in
their fir value snd mre used by the Bank in the monagement of its shon-lerm commitments. These
imclude cash pnd non-resinicted baktances with other hanks, reasury bills and other short-term
SCuUmiies,

el Finanelal Asssts!
The Bank classifics its Nmamceal assets 0 the following categones; loans and recenvables and
avadlable for sale, The classification depends on the purmpese for which the investmems wene
acgquirgd. Mamagement determines the classification of s investments of mitial recognition and re-
eviluates this desipnation at every reparting date,

fid  FLowrrey arad Recobvables:
Laoans and recetvables are non-demvative finangial assets with fixed or determinable
pasmeents that are not gquobed in on active market other than:

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(Expreased in Exstern Caribbean Doliers)

4, Summary of Slgniflcant Accounting Polickes: (oo '
fif Frmancial Aoegte feont o)
fid Loans amd Receivables: feont )

e jhose that ithe entity infends 1o sell immedaiely or i the shor erm, which are classified
as held for tradding, and those that the emity upon initial recogniteen designates as al fair
vahwe through profit or loss;

o those that the entity upon indtial recognition designates as available for sabe; or

o those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initeal investment,
other than because of credit detenomtion. The Bank™s loans and recervahles comiprise
deposits with hanks und other finnpeial instilutions and loans and sdvances o cusiomers.

Loans and receivables are carmicd al amortied cost using the elffective interest method,

fild  Avdlabile for Sclie
Available-for-sale investmens are those imendad to be held for an mdelinite penod of time,
which may be sold m response 1o needs for housdity or changes in interest mies, exchange
rabes or equily prioes.

Purchase ond sales of available-lor-sale investments are recogmised on trade-date — the dae on
whach the Bank commits (o pirchase or sell the asset. Financial assets pre imitially recognised
at fair value plus transactions costs. for all financial assets not carmeed at fair value through
prodil or lss. Financial assets are dereeogmnised when the righis 1o receive cash fows from
I['l:.- ﬁnanri:ﬂ RSt Y |'|.a.1.'|: ::li.pll'l;"l.l [y il.'||:'r: 1|1{.- f.'lp.nh ha,:: lel':ﬂ'l,-d !ubﬁhfﬂ:i.ﬂ.“& all ri.'ll,; a.nd
rewards of ownership,

Available-for-sale [inancial assets one subsequently camed ot fair value. Goins ond losses
arising from changes in (b value of available-Tor-sale financial asseis are recognised in
equity, uniil the Anancial asets are derecognised or impaired a1 which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recopnised in equity 1s recognised in profit ond bess. However, interess
calculated usang the effective interest methosl s recognised in the statement of comprehensive
loss. [hvidenids on available-for-sale equity imstruments are recognised in the statemient of
comprehensive loas when the entity "s right 1o receive payment is established.

The far values of quoted invesaments m active markets are hased on carrent bid prices. 11 the
minrket for financial asset is nod sctive (and Ter unlisted secuntees), the Bank establishes (@i
value by using valuation technigues.  These inclsde the use of recent amm's length
transactions, and other valisation wehnigues commonly used by markel paricipans.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expreased in F:n-h'm Carifebemer Dalars

4, Summary of Slgniflcant Acconnting Polickes: (oo ol
fed fuperirmendt of Finacial diveis

Assers Carried af Amorficed Coss:

The Bank assesses al each reporting date whether there is objeciive evidence thut a Ninancial msset or
group of lnancial asseis are impaired. A fiancial assel or group of financial assets is impaired and
mapairment losses ane ineurmed if, and only I, there 15 eljective evidence of impairment as a resubl of
one or more events that oocerred i the mital recogmnition of the ssset (o “loss event ™) and that a loss
event {or events ) has an impact on the estimated future cash fliows of the financial asset or groap of
financial asscts that can be relinbly estimated. Objective evidence that a financinl asset or groap of
assets s impaired includes observable datn thal comes 1w the anemion of the Bank abow the
ol | g i ek

(11 sigmificont financial difficulty of the isseer or obligor;
(i) a beeach of comract, such as a default or delinguency in intenest of principal payments,

(wly e Hank p:ml:inp_ iy the bormower, (or coonomic or I-cpul TEIROns rchl!inﬂ_ 1o the homower's
financinl difficulty, o concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

{iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enler banknipdey o other fimancial reorganisation;

vl the dispppearunce of an sctive market for that financial asset becouse of na financil
dhificulties; or

{vi) observable data indicating that there is o measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
Movs Trom a group of fmancial msets since the imitial recogmtion of those assets, although the
decrease cannet et be identified with the individual financial asscts in the group, inchsding:

= pdverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group: o
& ations] or loeal economic conditions that cormelate with defaults on the pssets i the group

The Bank [rs1 assesses whether obpective evidence of impairment exists individually Tor financaal
asscts that are individually significam, el mdivichmlly o collectively for finoncial assets that arc
pot individually significant. [F the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment ¢xists
for an indpadually sssessed lnancial asset, whether significant or nol, it includes the assel in o group
of fimancial assets with similar credit nisk clameteristics. and collectively  sssssses them for
impairment, Asscts that are individually assessed for empadiement and for which an impairment loss
i or comtames o be recopmised are mod included in the collective assessmient of mmpairment.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Expressed in Eaviers Caribean Dellar

4, Summary of Sknificant Accounting Poliches: (cont ')
fed fmepsirmiennt of Finareiol Asxets; foond o
Aszers Carried av Amovrised Cosr: foond 'all

I there is ehjective ¢vildente thal an impaimment biss on loans and receivables has been incurmed, the
amaunl of the loss s measured as the differenee between the asset’s carrying amound and the present
value of the estimated [ulure cash ows (excluding futere fosses that have not been incurmed)
discounted o1 the financiol asset’s onginal effective interest rate. The carrying amoum of the assel 1s
reduced through the use of an allowange account and the amount of the loss s recognised in the
stifement of comprehensive meome. IF a loan has vanable ivieresi mibes, the discount mfe for
mexsuring any impairment boss is the current effective imerest rate determined under the contret.
As g practbcal expedient, the Bank may mcksure impairment on the basis of an strumen’s fair
value using the ohscrvahle market price,

The calcidation of the preser valie of the estimated fiture cash Nows of o collmenilised fmancial
assel mellects the cash Mows that may o may not resull from fereclosure less oosts [or obtaming and
sellimg the collateral, whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

For ihe purpose of o collective evaluation of impairment, Bngncial assels are grouped on the basis of
similor credil chamolensfics (e, on the bosis of ihe Rank"s prading process tlal conssders assel
type, indusiny, colliteral fvpe, posi-due stamps and other rebevant [actors). Those chamcierstics ane
relevant to the estimation of future cash Tlows for proups of sech asscis by boing osbicative of the
diebiors” ability o pay all amounts due acoording 1o the contractual ferms of the asscis being
evaluated,

Future cash fMows in & group of finoncial assels that ane collectvely evaluated for imparmment are
estimated on the hasis of the contraciual cash Mows of the assets in the Bank ond historical loss
expenence for asscts with eredit nisk charoctensies similar fo those in the Bank. The methodology
and assumpiions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by ihe Bank io reduce
any dilferemces between loss estimates and actual loss expenicnce.

Wihen o boan is uncollectible, it is written ofl agoinst the related provision for loan impainment. Such
loans are writben of T after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of ammmis previow]y sotben off decrease the
amaunt of the provisien for the boan impaimmsent in the statement of comprehensive incomie.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaimmein loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively o an event occurming after the impaimmens was recognised (such as an
improvement im the debtor™s eredit mting), the previously recogmised impairment loss 15 reversed by
adjusting the allowenee account,  The amount of the reversal 15 recognised i the siatement of
comprehersive Income.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fer

fel

fhy

{Expressed i Eaviers Carihivean Dellar

Summary of SkEaificant Accounting Pollebes: (cont 'dl
Impairment of Finacial Assets: foons o

Aszeis Cawvled of Falr Valie:

The Bank sssesses ol each repomling date whether there is abjective evidence thal a Mnancial asset o
a group of (hancial assels is impairsd. [n the case of equily imvestmenls classaficd s ovailable for
sale, a sagnihcant or prolonged decline i the G value of the scourity below its ool 15 comsideral in
determining whether the assets are impained, 17 any such evidence exists for available-Tor-sale
financial assets, the cumulptive loss measuned as the difference betweeen the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment boss on the financial asset previously recognised in the profit
or loss, is removed from equity and recognised in the siotement of comprehensive inceme.
Impairment losses on equity instrumients recognised i the statement of comprehensive imcome ane
o reversed through the sutement of comprehensive income. 15 in o subseguent pericd, the fair
value of & debl mmstrumem classificd as available for sale increases and the incrense can be
objectively related to an event occurring afler the impairment loss was recognised in the satement of
comprehensive income, the impairment loss s reversed through the statement of comprehensive
INCTHTIE,

Henogotioied Logns,

Logns that gre either subject o0 collective impairment assessmend or individually significant and
whase terms have been renegotinted ane no longer considened 1o be past due but are treated as new
loans.

i Geiting Finaretal Instrioments:

Financial assets and Habilitics are offset and the net amount reponted in the statement of financial
postiion where there 15 a legnlly enforcenbde night 1w offset the recognised amounts and there 15 an
intention o seile on a net basis, or realise the assel and setile the liabiliy simultaneously.

Properiy, Plomt cid Equipiens;

i, Traffid Misacpremend
Property, plamt and euipment are anebially steted ot histoneal cost less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expemditure that is directly atnbuted 10 the soquisition
of Hems,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fEapreseedd i Basders Carmbiear Dwllany

4,

fh

Summary of Skgnificant Aceounting Poliches: fconr
Praperty, Plant and Equipment; foont oy
il Subweguent Meainrement

Lanrwel el Bl

Adler recognition, lend and building, whose fur value can be measured reliably shall be
carmicd ol a revalued amount, hcl'ns s fwir value at the date of the revalisation bess any
subseguent accumulated depreciation and  subseguent  accoumulaed impairmient Iovaim
Revaluation shall be made with suiTicient regulority o ensure that the cormyving smoun does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

I on msset’s carrying ool is inercased ag a result of o revaluation, the inerease shall be
recognized n ather comprehensive income and accumulated i eguity ander the Beading of
revalimtion surplus, However, the inorcase shall be recogmized in peodin or loss to the extent
that it reverses o revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recogmized in profit and
loss,

IT an asset’s corryving amount is deereased o5 o resull of a revaluation, the docrease shall be
recognized I profit or loss,  However, the decrease sholl be recognized o other
comprehensive moome tis the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaltion serplus
im respect of thai asset. The devrease recopnized in other comprehensive income redoces the
amouni acewmulated in equity under the heading of revalustion surples.

Whan a buildieg is revalued, any accumulated depreciation al the date of the revaluation is
restaicad proportionately with the change in the gross carmying amount of the asset so that the
carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount

Land is not deprecinted.
il Furnirure aod Egquipament

Aller L'I.,'\;"l:lp‘l.il-ﬂm. an item of propeny, r.||:,mi awl cyuipment shall be cormeed o its cost less
any sccumiilated depreciation and any sccumilated mmpairment ksses.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Eapreved in Eastern Caribbean Doflars)

4, Summary of Significant Aceoanting Pollebes: (com Wl
find Properny, Planr ard Eguipmens (oo o
fv Depreclation;

Depreciation on olher assets is calculated on the straight line method o write off the cost 1o
iheir residal vidlues over ther extimmated uselnl lives as follows:

Buildings %
Motor viehicles |
Furniture and equipment 2P - 13 173%
Computer Equipment A% - 33 173%

The asscts” residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, st each
reponing dote.

A asset’s carmying amound 15 written down immediately 10 08 recoverable amount i the asset's
COmying amound ks greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains amd losses on disposals are
determined by companing proceeds with carmying amounts, These ane included in profit or boss,

fi fvesiment Properties:
Progeertices held for long-teem rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are eccupied
by the Bank and'or |EL, are classified as investment properties.  Investment propenics conprise
freehold land and hlih.ling:q..

Investment properties are measured mitmlly at their cost, iscluding related tansaction costs.  Aller
imitial recognition, investmend propertics ore cormeed of fair value, A gam or [oss ansing from o
change in the Tair valee of investment property shall be recognised in profit or loss for the periosd in
which it arises.

Subseguent expensditure 15 charged o the aset"s carmying amomnd only when it i probable that future
ceonomic benelits associated with the fem will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be
measured neliably. All other repairs and mainienance eosts are charged to the profit or bess during
the financial persod i which they are ncwrred.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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4, Summary of Sknificant Accounting Poliches: (cont ')

il fmipairment af Ciher Noar-Fimanelol Axxefs:

Assets that have an sdeguate imdefimite useful life are ot subject o amoisation and are tested
anmu@lly for impairment.  Assets that are subject to amorisation are reviewed for impairment
whemever events or changes in circumstanees indicate thatl the cormying amount may . be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s camrying amouni
exceelds s recovernble amount, The recovernble amount 15 the higher of an msset™s (air value less
costs 10 sell and value in use, For the purpoeses of assessing impairment, assels are grouped al the
lowest levels for which there are separately emtifinble cash Nows (cash genemting units),

fikr Berrowings:
Bormowings are recognised ar fair value, being thedr Bsue procesds (fair valee comsideration
received) net of transaction costs mcurred. Borrowings ane subsequently simed ar amorised cost, any
difference between procesds net of transactions cost and the redemption value s recognised m the
siptemient of comprehensive income over the peniod of the bormowings using the elfective mlerest
miehd,

il ety
Grants are recognised ot the fair value where there is 3 reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Bank swill comply with all aiached conditions. Gramts relating o costs are defermed
and recognised inthe staterent of comprehensive income over the period neocssary to match them
wilh the cost that they are miended o compernsate,

frl e Capifa;
Ordinary shares are ¢lassafied as equty. Incremental costs directly attinbutable to the issue of new
shares of options of to the soquisition of a business are shown i equily a5 a deductson, from the
procecds.

frd Dividenek owr Crilingry Sharey:
Dividends on ondinpry shargs are recognised in equity in the peniod in which they are declared.
[hivedends thai are declored after ihe reporting date are disclosed s a subsequent event,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Exprevsed in Eastern Caribbean Doflars:

4, Summary of Signiflcant Accoanting Pollebes (oo '

find fetereat focowre aricd Expense:
Interest income and cxpense for all imercst=bearing financial instruments are recognised within
“interest imcome” and “interest expense” in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interes methodd 15 a method of calculaiing the amortised cox of a financial xse or a
financinl labiliy and of allocoting the mierest ncome o mlerest expense over te relevant period,
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments or
reccipts through the expected life of the financial mstrument or, when appropniate, a shorer period to
the net carrying amount of the financial osset or financial lability. When calculating the cffective
inderest e, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contrsctual terms of ithe financial
matrumenl (for example, prepaviment oplions) bul does mol comuder future enedil losses. The
coleulotion includes all fees pasd or discounts received between parties ta the contract that ere an
imiegral pant of the effective iverest rie,

Omnce a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result ol an
hnppin‘rtcnl qu. inlr,m::l ilu;urm,r i'g. II;BII,ZIIIHI'II\I;HJ u\.ing I|‘1¢' rale l,lf inl:.m'q:'.-'l w,u;ql [ [V dia.-l,:ul.ml 1|1.|.- I'ul.q.mc
c:l.!]1 lows For !hl'.' [rarpEss of IMERSLITIngE 1!14: |m|'u;|.irm.:'|1l lowes

fjrd Feey aundd Chher fncoee;
Foes and other mpome are recognized 10 the extent that i is probable thar futere coonamie beneiis
will fow v the Bank ond the income can be measured reliably, Income 85 generally recognised on
an aceniml basis when the service has been provided,

Loan commitment foes are deferred (logaber with related direct cosis) and recognised as am
adjustment o the effective micnes! rvle on the loa,

fegl Terarmation Bencin:

Termination bencfits are payvable when employment is tlerminated befone the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employves accepts voluntary redundancy i exchange for these benefits, The Bank
recogises Iermination benelits when 1 s demonsirably comminied 1o either: terminating the
employment of cument emplovess according to a detaled formal plan withmn possibility of
withdrowal; or providing termination benefits us a resuli of an offer made o encourage volumiary
redundancy. Benelits falling dise more thain 12 months afler e reporting date are discowited o
present value,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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P ypresed i Eastern Caribbesi Dollars;

4. smmmary of Skpnificant Acconnting Paliches rooer Wl
irp Foretgn Crrremrcy Tromslmon:

Furscriwwd andd Presentariion Creremcis

lems am the financial stdemeniz are mepsured wsing the cumency of the pnmary economig
crveronmenl i which the entity operates (“the functicnal curreney™ ). The lnancial statements ane
presemisd in Essten Caribbean dollars, which is the Bank's functional and presenistion currency,

Tramn o tiouns amd Boafance:

Foreign camency imnsschions are enslaied indo the fumctiona] cumency using the exchange mics
prevailing al the dates of the frmmactions.  Foreign exchange gains and losscs resubing from the
seitlemment o such transactions und mom the tramlation of yesr-end exchonge males of monetary
asscts and liabilities denominated in foscign curencies are recognised o the stalement of
comiprehensive imcome,

5 Finamcial Risk Management:

fund Fimancial Rick Foctors
The Bank has exposune b the following risks from its wse of firancial instruments;

5 Credu Hisk
= Pfarker Hisk
» Liguidiey Risk

This note presents information abow the Bank’s exposime to each of the phove risks, the Rank's
objectives, policies and processes o menswring and monaging sk, and the Bank's management off
capital

The Board of Directors has overall responsibiliny for the establishment and oversight of ibe Bank's
rnsk management immevwork and it also assesses financial and eomral nuks b 1he Bank.

The Bank™s msk managemend policses are establehod 1o dentily and analysc the msks [accd by ihe
Hank. 1o set appropaate sk limiis and controls, and io mendior fisks and sdberence bo limies.

RHisk managemem polickes and systiems one revicwed reguladdy 1o meflect changes in market
conditions and the Hank®s activifies. The Bank, throuph its imening and managemend standasds and
procedurss, aims o develop a disciphined and constructive contrsl enviranment in whach all
employess undersiamd their roles and obligations. The Bank's Board of Directors. oversees how
mumagensent monitors compliance with the Bank’s mak mamagement pobicses and procedures, and
reviews the adeguacy of the risk management framework in relation o the msk faced by the Bank.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fend
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i

{Expressed i Eaviers Carihean Dellar)

Finamcinl Rk Management: (oot o)
Flnancid Risk Foctors foone '

Sivaategy i Ulsing Flonclo! istramiemia:

By s nature, the Bank's activitica are principally related 1o the use of financial insnements. The
Hank secures funds from variows lending agencies ot both fixed and vanable interest rates and For
warks penods and seeks 1o eam above avernge mlerest marging by imvesting these funds in hagh
quality assels.  The Bank sevks to morense these morgins by conssledating shor-term funds and
lendfing for longer perodds ab higher rufes while mamtaining sufficeent lguadity 1o meet all ¢laims
thot may (il due.

The Bank also seeks o mase s imlerest margins by obtaning above average margins, net of
allowanees, through lending 10 commercial and retail borrowers with a mnge of credn standing,
Such exposures involve baans and sdvances 1o astomers,

Crealr Bisk:

The Hank iakes on exposune (o credin sk which s the risk thai o counterparty will be unable (o pay
amounts in full when due, Impairment provistens are provided for besses that have been incurred at
the reporting date.  Sipnificant changes in the economy, of in Use health of a partbcular iwlustry
sepment that represent a concentratin in the Bank's portfolio, coald resuli oy bsses that ane daiferent
from thme provided for o1 the reporting date, Mansgement therefore carelully manages ils exposune
1o credil msk,

The Rank strsctueres the levels of credit msk it undertakes by placing Himits on the amound of nsk
accepted in relation fo one bormower, of groups of bomowers and fo isdustry segmemsts. Soch nisks
are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject 1o monthly reviews. The Bank also undertakes
supervised credit of large projects whenehy loans are dishbursed in iranches. A progress feport is
completed afler cach 1ranche B dishursed o ascertain the praject value, The Bank 15 exposed o
potential ks only in the amount of the loan disbursed.

Exposure b eredit nisk is managed throaugh regular anplysis of the ability of bormowers and poleniial
bmwers B0 meed interest and capital repaymend oblyations and by chonging these lending limits
where appropriaie.  Exposune to eredit risk is also managed in part by obtaming eollaeral and
corporate amld personal guaranioes,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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tExpreased in F:r.l-h'rn Carifsbemar Daoliers

iy

fiid

]

L

Financlal Risk Managemeni: foonr Wl
Credit Rivk: feourr o

Credit msk also arises from the possibility that €ounterparises may defoult on their rental obhgations
i the Bank"s indusinial estaie operations, The maximem exposure 10 credit nisk for the indwstrial
caiale operations is indicaled by the carrving amoum of it financial asseis,

The Indistnial Estate Unil deals primarily m the rental industry which potentially exposes that
aperation o concenirations of credil nsk.  Policies are m place 10 ensure that rental of propertics ane
made 1o customers with an appeopriote credit history.  Management also performs periodic credin
eviluations ol s customers” linancial condition.

Credit Risk Meosireament - Louwrs and dahvaces:

The Bank assesscs the probability of default of individual counterpartics wsing inernal rating tools
tailored 1o the varous calegorics of counterpartics. They have been developed based on the Eastern
Caribbean Central Bank j;.ridﬁllm, Customers of the Bank are segmented mto five m!inl:: classes,
The Bank's rating scile, which s shown helow, reflects the range ol default [mrlm.lulillux defimed For
cach mting class. This means that in pnnciple, exposures migrate between classes e the assessment
aof their probability of default changes. The rting toods are kept under review amd upgreded as
MCCCRary .

Bank's Hating Description ar the Grade
Pass

|

e Special Mention
3 Sub-standard

i b ful

1

Livia

Risk Linle Controd ard Mitgatien Pollces,
Thie Bank manages limits and controls concentrations of credit nsk wherever they are wdentified - in
partscalar, to indivadieal counterpartics and groups, and to indisines.

The Bank structures the level of credit risk it underiakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
avcepled in relation 1o one bomrower. of ghoups of borrowers, amd to U industey segments.  Such
risks are moniored on 8 revalving basis and subject o an annual or more frequent review, when
considered necessary by the Board of Directors.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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£ Financinl Rk Management: foont o
fhil Clreatis Bixks (oot 'd)

fel Risk Linnlt Conntrand sl Mibgponion Polleies: foeoet dl
The exposure o any one boerrower inchiling banks and beokers is Murither restricted by sub-limits
coveriig of-and-ofT statement of lnancial position exposares, and daily delivery msk limils i
relation 1o rading iems,  Actisal exposures against limis are moniored,

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of bormowers and
petential borrowers o mect interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lendhing
limits swhene appropriate.

Some other speeilic control and mitigation measuses are outlined below,

fip Codluargerad
The Bank employs o range of policies and practices to mibignie oredit msk, The most
traditional of these B the taking of securty for funds advancad which is comnon practice.
The Bank implements guidelines on the aceeptability of specific ¢lasses of eollateral or
credil risk mitigation, The principal collateral types For loans and advances are:

= Mongages over residential propeniies:

= Charges over business asscts such os premises, plamt and equipment and mobor
wvehiches:

- I'Il:rgm. over Tmancmal mrdruamenis such as deb secunities amd I:l..|l]l|:il,."-i:

= Assignmend 1o the Bank of key-man, life. home owners and mastor sehicle
MALITINGES,

Long-term finance and lending 1o corporate customers and individuals are generally secured.
In sddition, v order 1o mindmise the eredit loss the Bank will seek additional collateral from
the counterparty & 3000 a5 impairment indicalors are noticed for the relevant individial
loans pnd advances.

Caollnteral bebd as secunity for financinl assets other than loans ond sdvances is determined
b the natwere of the instrment, Dbt seounties, treasury aml other eligible bills are generilly
unsecuned.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(B xpressed in Enstern Caribbega Dollars |

5 Financlal Risk Management: foonr Wl
i Crelit Rixk: fooas o)
fivl Rink Limiy Controd aod Mittrarion Policies: fooms d)

fild Crealll —Refuted Commiimens

Commitnems o extend credit represent imdesbursed portions of approved loans.  'With
respect o eredit sk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank s potentially expased 1o
loss i an amount equal to the total unused commitments.  However, the likely amount of
loss is less than the tofal wenused commitments as most commitments to extend credil e
comtingent upon customers muintaiming specific credit standards.  The Bank monitors the
term to materily of credil commitments bocause longer-teem commitmenis generally have a
greater degree of credit risk than sharler-form comanitinents,

filfil Trmipwaienrent amd Proaisdoning Pollcis
The intemal and extemal rting systems deseribad under “credit risk measurement™ focus
more on credit-quality mapping from te meeption of the lending and investment activities,
In contrast, impainment provisions are recognised for financial reporing purpeses only for
losses that hove been incumed at the reporting dale based on objective evidence of
i puiirETsernL.

The imparrment provisaon shown in the statemen of fimancial posrtion ot vear-cnd = derved
from each of five intemal rating grades, However, the majonty of the impairmemt provision
comes [rom the boltom three gradings.  The whle bebow shows the percentige of the Dank's
loans and advances and the associated impairment provision for each of the Bank's imternal
rlineg calepories:

2014 2013
Loansand  [mpairment Loans and Impairment
advances provision ngvances provision
%) ) 0w 9
Bank's rating
l. Pass (.1 Joas2 Ti.46 66,71
2. Special mention 1357 .16 E.G6 2157
3. Sub-stamndard 1.0 3.99 (1] {1,849
4. Doubtful 576 3.4 318 2
5, Lamss 10.73 20,89 10,79 B30

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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tEgpressedd i Eavtern Caribhenn Dollers

5
il

Financial Risk Management: foond ol

Crodit Risk: oot 'l

Farr)

fmpsairavedd covd Provisioning Policies foone ')
The internal rating ool assists management to determine whether ebjective evidence of
impairmient exisis under LAS 39, based om the [ollowing criterin set oul by the Bank:

= Dhelinguency in contractual payments of principal or interes;

«  Cpsh Now difficultics expenienced by the borrower {c.g. equity rati, net
income as i percentage of sales);

. Hreach of laan eovemanis or comditions:

= Initiation of bankmopicy proceedings;

* Deteroraton of ithe borrower's compeetitive position; amd

* [hetersornteom in the value of collateral.

The Bank's policy requires the review of individus] finoncial asseis that are above
||1u1i:ri.;||il}' thresholds al least :umuull':' ar mong r|.1:_||l|.|.r|}' when mdhvidhiml corvumstances
require.  Impairment allowances on mdivideally sssessed sccounts are determined Iy an
eviluation of the incurred loss at reporting date on a case-by-case basis and are applied to all
inclividually sigmilicant accounis. The ossessment normally envompasses collateral held
{mcluding re-confimation of s enforceabiliyd and the amticipated receips for that

ineliwvigdual aceound.

Maximum Exposnre fo Croait Risk hofore Collateral Held or Other Credit Enfmcements

Credit Risk Exposures relating to on-
balance sheel asseis

Ireasury halks

Dhepuosits with hanks and other fimancial

nshifubicns

Lixams and madvences 1o customery:
1Demmngd loans

- Mortgage loans

Urher nssets

Credit risk exposures relating to off-
Ialance sheet Hemis

L g conkinibimsids

As restmfed

2014 2013

5 EREE L] 410, 1
H.BIT2HS 1046, 1859
114,317,171 19414534

34180 500 12989125
1054233 1,109,092

1 5%, R 45N 157,869 2401
2535916 21,864 554

% 179,336 406 179,732,704

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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i apressed in Exveen Caribbean Pollars )

= Financlal Risk Management: (oonr o

il Creelit Risk feams o
fifil Impairanemd gond Provisioning Policies foons o
Meacimieme Evpoanre fo Credit Risk befare Collateral Held or Ooher Credit Enfioncemaents (oo 'd)
Thic abowve table represents a worst case scenano of crodin sk exposure o the Bank @ June 30, 2014
and 2003, withous aking account of any collateral held or other credin enhancements attached. For
on-halance sheet assets, the exposures sel oul shove are basad on net curmying amasumis s reporied in

the statement of finameial position.

A shorwn abve, 8280 % (2013 - BT %) of the wtal maximum exposune s derived From lomis
and pdvances 1o cEsiomers,

Management is confident in is abkility b comntanee 1o contre and sustain miniinal exposure of credil
risk tov the Bank resulting from both s loan and advances porfodio based on the fodlowing:

a B3 45% (2003 = T0425) of 1he loans and advances [t falio 1% L:ah.:gm"lm! i the T Ty gmdl;n
of the internal miing system.

o 43532 (2003 = 42.48%) of the loans amd advances portfolio are consadered o be neither past
due nor impaired; and

o The Bank has introduced o more stringent selection process upon granting loans wnd advances.
Lovares arad Achemces

Loans and sdvances are summarnised as follows:

14 013
Metther past due nor impaired b T1,710,143 T1, 264,453
Past chae bt mad anpanred T5920.081 T, 95, ThHd
Impaired 17,158,653 21,555,020
Lirmss 16, TR RTT 167,765,276
Less allowance for impaimment lesses on loans and
aidvances i 1, 200,505 ) ) {15361.317)
3 148498872 152403,950

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fiZrpreased in Eaveen Caribbemn Dvllars)

fifn

Financlal Risk Managemeni: oo Wl
Crvefit Bivk foons ol

Loars and Advimces oo dl

The iotal impairment provision for loans and advances s S162909038 (2003 - SI5361.317) of
which 512688030 (2003 - 511 437.347) represemts the indavidually impaired loans and the
remuining amount of $3,592.875 (2003 - 33,923,970 represents the portfolio provision. Funher
imformation of the allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances 1o customers is provided
in Motes 10 and 11,

fiLl Loarey amgd Advemees mediver Pask Diwe nor .fmpm'n,"..i‘:

The credit quality of the portolio of loans and sdvances that were neither past due noe
|1np.;||n,.'-;l cam b assessed |'|:|. reference 1o Uhe internal raling syslem udupl.-l,:d by the Hank.

Demand Mortgape

loams loans Total
June 30, 2004
Caraides
1. Pass 5 53146410 18,560,733 TL71L 143
Juane 30, 2013
Cirmiles
. Pass &5 56,784 1K1 14 S0 502 Tl 264 453

i) Lowws and ddvarces Pasé Diae bk Not Taypained:
Loans and sdvanees less than ninety (90]) doys past due are pot considered impained, nless
other information is available to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans and sdvances
by class 1o customcrs nel of uncarmed interest th were past due bul nol impaired were as
Fual lovwes

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{ Expressed i Easters Carilbbewar Dolfarsd

fhi

Finamckal Risk Management: oo ol

Credis Bick foomt di

Losmars aroed Achvarnces foond o)

iy Loans amd Advanoes Pasé Dae b Nor fmpaired. (comr o

At June 30, 2004
Past due up to 30 days
Past due 30-60 days
Past dise HI-SH) days
Past duse over 0 days

At Jume 30, 213

Past duse up 1o 30 days
Past dise 3060 days
Past chae 690 days
Past dise over 90 days

Upon imitial recognition of loans and advances, the fair valise of collateral is based on valuation
techmigues commonly used for the cormesponding assets,

Chemumad Muorzapse
lpans losans T'onal
5 56, 260,625 13,352,266 B612,59]
515,789 49,134 56,023
46,925 {559 TET A4
A4 SR 374,743 4,954, TR
5 2. 103,379 [ 3.E16.T02 T5.420,08]
5 £3.3T0032 15,414,449 68, TRA AR
487625 d 2 548,527
672, 5460 b 453 733,023
4413457 406,276 4879, 733
5 af 36T 1 & A2 ARH T, 5045, T

(k) Lo amd Achvarces Indrvicheadly Tapaived

The table below shows thi irqhvuhmll:.‘ |r.|1|'n:|inp|j boans and sdvances 1o customers helone
taking inte consideration the cash Mows from collatern] held,

The breakdown of the gross amount of isdividually mpaired loans and advances by class are

as fiolbows:

At June 30, 2004

Individually impaired boans 5

At June 30, 2003

v vifually impaired boans 5

Premand Morgage
lisans lowanes Tital
14,853,547 2,305,106 | T.158653
18,925 538 224 A4 21 535029

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5

iy

(Exprevsed in Excern Caritbhean Dotlfars)

Financlal Risk Management: foomr W
Crofit Rixk rooms oy

fivt  Loans and ddvarces Rencgotiated

Restructuring  activitees  include extended paveeenl  arrongements, approved  extemal
management plans, modilfication aml deferval of pavments. Following restrueiuring, a
previously overdue customer acoount is reset to a normal status and managed wogether wath
pher sumnlar socoumis. I-'.c*dn,t;l.l,u'i:lp_ Fu,'ll:u;J:'a. nnel praciices e based on mbicators or
criterin which, in the judgment of Hank's management, indicate that payment will mosi
likely continue. These policies mre kept under continuous review, Restructuring is most
cammonly applied 1o lerm loais, o panbcular customer Ninanee loans, Henegotiaied loans
that would stherwise be past due or impained totalied 5200945, 1 36 as of Jene 30, 2004 (200 3:

$20.915,758),

fud Repassensed Collareral

A the end of 20014, the Bank had repossessed collmeral valued m S115,000 (2013

L1950

il Crengrapdical wid Econosnlc Concesttrations of Adseds dnd Liabilities

The Bank operates primartly i the Commonwezhth of Dominica amd the exposure 1o credn

risk 1% comcentrided m this pren.

Economie sector risk concentrations within the customer loan pentfolio were as follows:

Education

Morigugre

Towrism

Indwsirial

Agericuliural

Cnher consumers
Disgnbution amd commence

Total lefore deduction for allowsnce for
losses on lonns and sdvances

Iond 3

& [N o] MK
IR0 20731 | 704 K[ IR
21,08 RE N 1%, 74 35012
1R.35 46,723 2641 44 30
26,23 432X 42 40355
e | 4462 176 4636
160 £ 030 i)} 21y
0,02 29 0.07 30

1 0, O 164,790 | {0, (0 167,765

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

50 /DAIDB Annual Report 2014




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

tExpressed in F:r.l-h'rn Carifsbemar Daoliers

. Financlal Risk Managemeni: foonr Wl
fod Mrkey Rivk:

The Bank tokes on exposame to market nisk, which s the msk that the fair value or fufure cash lows
of a fimanceal instrument will Muciuste because of changes in market prices.  Market risks arise from
apen positions i inferest rate and equity products, all of which are exposed o general and specific
market movements and changes n the level of valatliy of marksl mics or prices such as inlerest
rites, credil spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Bank s exposures 1o market riaks
arise from s nen-trading portfolios,

Non-trading portfolios primarily arse from the interest role management of the Bank®s retail and
commercial hanking assets aid labilithes, Mon-trading portfolios aluw ¢onsia of equity fisks arsing
from the Bank™s available-for-sale investments,

fiLl Frice Rivk
The Bank s exposed to equity securifics price risk because of invesiments held by the Bank
and classified on the stmement o Fnancel [!lmilu,m as available for sale. To munage W5
rrrim: riak J:nn.i:np froms o estmenls m Cujlnty wecuritnes, the Bank diversilfies s ]'Hllﬂrl!llll'l.

Al June 30, 2004, il equity securities prices had been 1076 higherTower with all other
vamabics held constan, equity for the year woilld have been 506,333 higherlower as a result
of the increase'decrease in falr value of avatlable-for-sale equity securities.

fil Currercy Risk:
The Bank takes on exposure o effects of Muctuations in the prevailing fonsign curmency
exchange mtes on s Fmancial position and cash Nows, prmanly with respect o the Umted
States dollar (USS) and Euro, The Board of Directors sets limits on the level of exposure by
currengy and in tot] which are momitored daily, The Bank’s exposure to cumency nsk 1s
minimal with respect o the LSS since ihe exchonge mie of the Essiern Caribbean dollar
{ECS) o the LISS has been frmally pegped a1t ECS2,70 = LSS 100 since 1974,

At Jume 300, 2014 there werg no bormwings held in Euro currency,
The Following tahle summarises the Bank"s exposure 1o foreign cummency exchange e risk

at B 30, 2004, Incloded i the table mre the Bank's assels s linhdlites o carying
amwunts, categonsed by curreney,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5

fos

{Expressed in Eastern Carithean ailaes)

Financial Risk MManagement: (oounf o)

Marker Risk: foonr o

fied Crrrency Bivk: feon 'd)

Concembrating of corrency rink ot gl ol Balamee shee? Fmancia! instrmarnty

As ot June 30, 2004

MAsmets

Cash and balamces with the Ceniral
Fank

Trensury balls

Depaosats with banks and other financial
insbiutions

Losans and advances 1o customens
Available-for-sale investments

Dhher asscts

Total linancial asseis
Linbilifies

e iy cusbomers
Beorrowed fumbs

Cher liabilitics

Total financial labilines

Mot on-balanee sheet NMnanclal

Credit commitmenis
Aol Jume M), 2003

Total Ninancial nssets
Total finameial hobalites

Nt on-statement of Mnanclal posithen

Credit commitmenis

ECS 'S5 ELRLY Total
22,782 . . 23782

4 10, IHHD = = of 40, CHB
5,050 550 . = BG5S 3%G
48 408 972 - 48,498,972,
Hed 502 Hid S0
1,054,233 - = 1,054,233
159,300,875 = 159,300,875
0393 385 . = 9,393 385
335822049 BT = | 1K S5% 458
7,459,511 . - 7459511
20435 105 s R - F35 712,384
109,065, 7M1 (45277219 - X3 THE A9
535916 - = MLSAS 916
157,447,760 . - 157447, 760
59,795 254 T3R5, 91 3 I AFRDL 134,128, 50K
T AR RTH (T2 RN 3 (1439011 233118952
3 B6d 554 el L

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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tixprevsed in Easrern Carileheas Dollersy

5 Financial Risk Management: foonr o
ok Marked Rink: (oot o)

fiil g Mmteresr Rare Risk:

Cosh Mow imerest rute nsk is the nsk that the fnure cash Mows of a lnancial imstmement will
Musctuste bocause of changes in market interest mtes.  Fair value imerest raie risk is the nisk
that the value of a lnancial instrement will fuciuate because of changes in markel imerest
rmies.  The Mank tkes on expasurg o the effects of Muctuations m the pr:'l.:lihrl],: levels of
market imferest mabes on both its far valoe pnd cash flow nisks,  Interesi margins may increase
as o result of such changes bt moy reduce or create losses in the evemt that unexpected
movements anse.  The Board of Dhireciors scis limiis on the level of mismaich of imerest rabe
repeicing that may be underaken,

The mble helosw summpnses the Bonk's exposure Lo mierest mie nsks, Included in the whle
are the Bank's assets and liabilitics st carrying amounts, categorised by the carlier contractual
repricing of maturity dales.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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tE v is Eaaiors Caribbeis Dnliae)

icd

Financial Rk Massgement: foom

biforitatr Wik v oy

fiily  Iwerest Rove Risd- dronr o))

Mon-inberesd

| VA =% Yicars Lher 5 Y emrs earing Tistad
Mos gl g 30, 2004
Cash il balances with the Comral
Hank b4 - . . 22 TH2 22.T82
Treasary Balls B e . - . EAREE ]
Deeyposits with banks snd other financial
i et b 0,565 711 (=L S 000 - B 050, 156
Loans znil sdvances 1o ambinmers 17,747,130 Ap 304,128 4,447 0 - 148408, 972
Available-lor-sale tnvesiments - - - b4 02 Hed, 0
inher awsets - - - [Fei s Bk k] 1,054,335
Tatal financial swseis Byl L | 48 =8 THS Bl T 1540517 139 500,87
Dhie dis cusicenes LORUAIE B30 TG = LR LVE e L
Hecarowed funds 10623 345 IS 124 AR 58003 - 11EEHp 4R
Ohher Liahilities - . . TS50 TASRI01
Tatal Anmniial Nabilities bt S e | 18, RO r L TAE1] 115711154
Mot inferest repricing gage 1 AMFESIT (R RINN] JLIML 6T 5517504 25, THE 491
As ol Jmne 30, 1013
Tital Mmancial giscls 1,108,635 44440 452 BA5TT. 504 2419,730 157,447, 160
Vioial fleman|al Hebsilities 1,240 D 48 44T Ml L8 0T 30T H._r:-u-.!._l!_- 134,135 508
Nel interest repricing gap 5 (132,37} B 222 R iR, T {5,133 404 23 NIRSE2

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Expresied fn Eastern Carilbbewa Dolfars )

T

fci

Financkal Risk Mapagement: (oo o

ekl Bivk: feaonnd Wl

dL)  hrderesd Rafe Nk fooed o)

The wmble below summarises the effective interest mie by major currencies for monctary
finanginl instruments not correed ot fair value theough profit or loss:

In thousands of EC dollars
As al June 3, 2004

Asscis

Treaswry bills

Deposits with banks and other
fimaneinl institutions

Loans and advances 1o customers

Liabilithes
Dhue 1o customers
Borrowed fumds

As at June 30, 2013

Asiels

INreasry hills

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions

Loans mnd advances o cusiomers

Liabilithes

Due 1o cusiomers
Rorrowed funds

i Seeitivity Aomalvars

Cash flow mterest mie nsks anse from bomowings i vanable rates.  An Jupe 30, 3004 af
varizhle imterest rates haad been 1% higherlower with all other varinbles held constant, profit
fior the vear woukd kave been 51 12,670 higher/lower.

EiCs

Uss EURO

(LY

517
458

ER

237

T.62

357
545

(005 (000°s)

350

105 2.0

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Epressed o Easters Caribbesn Dollars)

5 Financial Risk Managemeni: fcomr o

(] Liguiainy Risk
The Bank is exposcd to daily calls on s available cash resources from maturing deposits and loan
dishwersements. The Bank does not maintam cash resowrces o meel ol of these neods ax expericnce
shows that a minimum level of renvesiment of maluring funds can be predicied with w bigh kevel of
certmnty, The Board sets limits on the minimum proporion of matuning funds available 1o meet
such calls and on the minimuam level of other borrowing Facilitics that should be placed 10 cover
withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand,

Ihe marching and controlled mismaiching of the mawrnities pmd imerest rales of assets ol
labilities. is fundamental 1o the management of the Bank. It is unesual for banks to be completely
matched, as transacted business & often of uncertain term and different types.  An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risks of losses,

The matunities and labilives and the ability o replace, ot an acceptable cost, merest-bearing
leabilitics as they mcasure, are imiporiant fectors in assessang the liquidity of the Bank and its
exposure 1o changes in interest Fatles,

fi)  Non-derdeative Coanlt Floas
The tahle below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under nron-derivative finoncial
habilitics by pemaining comtraciuzl malwrites an the reporting date.  The amoums diselosead in
the table arg the contrcliml undiscounied cash Novws, whereis the Bank manages the inherenl
liquidlity msk based on expected undiscoumted cash imflows.

| Year 2-3¥ears _ OnerSYears _ Tolal

Asseds ol June 30, 2004

Fimancial Nabilities

D 1 Cusbomers 5 3089615 6, 303,770 - 0303 185
Borrowed funds 10,623 345 S5 ETOLIM 32357015 118839488
Other lobilities 1,327,558 S5A4T0 648 655,305 TASLAL

Totnl fimancial liabiliies 5__ 15,040,522 67,659,542 33,012,320 135,712,364

Assets al Jume 30, 2003
Fimancial Hakilities

Due 1o customers $ 2695856 8.211,982 . 10,907,538
Borrowed funds 22,126,501 S1,I85478 64,849,021 138,161,000
Oher linbilitics 2,143,625 6,490,610 . 3.643,235
Total financial liabilities S 26,965,942 65,897,070 64,849,021 157,712,073

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{ Expressed i Easters Carilbbewar Dolfarsd
5 Financkil Kisk Managemeni: (oo o}
fidi Ligraldliny Risk fconr'd)
i) Lo Commiifmeni
The dates of the contractual amounds of the Rank™s ofT-balance sheet financinl instruments that
commat i b extended eredin 10 customers andd other facilines are summansed in the wmbie
below,

1_Yiear 2= 5 Yiears Total

As at June 30, 24

Loan commitments 5 "ﬁlﬁﬂ I'-'Ei_lllﬂlﬁ .:E].ﬂ? ]

Ao al June 30, 3003
Loan commitments 5 12.672.202 9,192,352 21.864,554

fed Fair Falues of Finaneied dssedy armgd Liahilities
Fair value amounts sepresent estimales of the consderation that would cwrently be ngreed upon
between knowledgeablie willmg porics who are under no compulsson 1o act and is best evidenced by
& quotcd market vahie, i one exists, The following methods and assumplions wene wsed 10 estimate
the fur value of financial instruments,

The fair valoes of cash resources, other aaets und linbilities, chegues and other tems o mansit anad
due tav other banks ang assumed to approximate their cormyving values due to ther short-term natre,

i) Lewwin evid Aifvarices foe Cuslisiiers
Loans amd advances are net of provisions foe impairment. The estimated foir valses of loans
anid mdvances represent the discounted amouint of estimated futire cash Mows mow expected o
be received, Expecied cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determing fiir value,

iy hrvesranest Securivies
Assets classified as available for sale ane measured al Guir valee.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5

fied

flCrpreased in Easeen Caribbemn Dllars)

Financlal Risk Managemeni: jconr Wl

Fair Valves of Fingneipl ety omed Liabilitien foone 5@

fire b

Dineer e Clier Bavnler anad Cusstourmers, Onher Deposits aod Crber Borrowed Furaly
The estimotied (air valwe of deposits with no stabed maturity, which includes non-inlerest
beanng deposits, is the amoant repavable on demand,

Deposits pavable on o fixed date pre of rtes that reflect market conditions and are assumied
te leave Fnir valses which approximate carmying villues.

The wable below summanses the carrying amounis and foir values of those financial ossets
and leahilities Aol pn.ﬂ..,mll;.'-] wn thie Rank s statement of nancial FHHiliIHI ol therr fuor valoe,

Carmying Value Fair Valug

2inl4 200 3 2004 013
Financial msseis
L and sdvanoes 1o
USRS £ 148498972 152,403 959 13E.856,4670 132.403,959
Financinl liahilities
e b0 customeTs 5 0393 185 10,5057 B3¥ 0393385 Ji,B07 518
Brorrowed funds 112 E5% 488 114,577,735 114,397,967 ROL053, 475

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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i Expressed im Eastern Carifebear Dafllars)

5, Financinl Risk Management: foont o)

i Futr Valwe Mierarciy
IFRS 7 Lp-:..'ll'l-:n.- a hnr.'ru.lth.}- ol valialion I.-p-.:hlnqm based on whether the Ipuls ko Lhaese valuatmon
techiiques are obscrvable or mmobservable,  Observable mputs refleat market data obtined from
mclepenident sowrces; unahservable mpaits reflect the Bank's markel assumiptions. These two types of
inputs have coeated the following (i value hierarchy:

& Level 1 Quoted prices (unndjusted) m scive markets For identical assets or lisbilities,
This level includes listed equity securties and debs instruments on exchange.

- Lewel 2 Inputs other than quioicl Tl'li:l;"l ingluded wthom Level 1 that are observable for
the ssset or hiabality, enther |.1|.m|.'!|3, (Ehat 15, o r.ri.:!cx] or madarecily {thal i,
dermved [rom prices .

#  Lewel  Inputs (oe the assel or liability that sre nol based on observable market data
{unohservabde inputeh,  This level iludes equity investments ond  debd
instruments with significont uobservable componenis,

This hicrarchy mequires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank considers
relevant and observable market prices in ils valuations where possibie.

Finnncinl Asscis measured ai fair valoe

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toeal
Available for sale invesimenis

= Equity securifics 5 - 207,330 B57,172 Rl 502

] Cerprivenl Marsegement
The Bank's ohjectives when managing capieal, whach is a broasder concepd than the “equty® on the face
ol stabement of financial positions, arc:

& Tocomply with the copita] reguirements sl by the regulators of the hanking markets where
the Bank operales;

- To safeguard the Bank's ability 10 contiue as o going concern so thal i cin continue 1o
|,‘rr'|.1'|'i|.1-|.' etirma [of shiarcholders amd benefig Tor other vlakeholders: aml

# i maintain a strong capital base o suppaont the development of its husiness

Capatal adequacy and the use of regulabory capetal are monitored by the Bank's management.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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B,

find

fif

{ Expressed i Easters Caribbewa Dol

Critical Accounting Estimaies, and Judgments in Applving Accouniing Policies:

Crticad Accoinmitng Extimgies aund Jmul;l;e'mmh:

The Bank makes estimates and assumplions. concerning the fulure, Estimates and judgments are
comtimaally evaluated and are based on historcal experience and other Bictors, ingludimg expeciations
aof fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstanees, These acoounting
cstimates will, by definitbon, seldom equal the reloted actual resulis. Estimates and underlving
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to acomenting edimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate ks revised and in any future periods affected.

The estrmates and assumpisons that lave a significant risk of causing a marernal adjustment 10 the
camying amoums of nssets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Fgpiriramrst Lovses om Laownns ovd Aehvirmces

The Bank reviews its loan portinlio o assess mmpairment of least on a quanerly hasis. In determinimg
wheiher an impairment boss should be reconded in the statement of comprehensive income, the Bank
mikes judpment as to whether there s any observable dols mdicating that there s a measurnble
decrease i the estimaled fulure cash Nows rom o porifolic of loans belore the decrease can be
identifed with an iodividsal loan in tha posfdee.  This evidenoe may inclode obscrvable data
indicating that there has been an ahverse change m the payment stalus of borrowers m a group, or
local economic conditions that correlmte with defaults on assets in the group.  Momagement uses
estimates based on historical loss expenence for sssets with eredit pisk chamsctenistics amd objective
evidence of impairment similar 1o those i the portfolio when scheduling its finure cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of assumptions used
for estunmating both the amount and tming of fulure cash Nows ane reviewed regularly o reduce any
differences between loss cstimates and aclual loss experience, To the extent that the net present value
of estimated cash flows differs by 4/25%, the provision would be estimated 56,143,437 lower or
higher.

Tmipariemeenit af Aveilerbile-for-Sale Equity Ievestinens

The Bank determines that available-for-wale equity investments ane impalfed when there has been a
sagnificam or proloiged decling in the falr valoe Below s cost,  This determvination of what s
sagnificam o prolonged requires judgment.  In making this judpment, the Bank evaluates ansng
other factors, evidence of deteriormtion in the financial health of the investes mwdustry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cosh flows,  There were no
dechines in fair value below cost considered significant or prolonged as ai June 30, 2004,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Expressed im Easdera Caribbeman Dotfars)

i, Critical Accounting Estimanes, and Judgments in Applying Acconnting Policles: (cour ')

fek Riversie Recogibiog
The 1EU recogniecs revenuoe gencrally when collection of the resulling reccivable is reasonably
assured. Should the IEL consider that the criterin for revenue recognition are nol mel for o transaction,
revenue recognition would be delayed uniil such tine as ihe collecaliliny is reasonally assuned,

Duiriieg 1he year, the |EL did not recopnine revenue on rental amounting ta 5330504 (2013 -

SRR 2T2) as sipnaficanl unceramtics reganding recovery exisl This relates o rental from enants
whi are in difficul economic simsations and have o paid their rems for several years now,

1. Cash and Balamees with the Central Bank:

Laj X4 1] ]
Cash in hand 5 21,537 1, 1ded
Balances with Certral Rank 1,245 |_-}'15 3
Incheled in cash and cash 5 13,782 2345

L x4 2013

i) Cosh g balances with the Central Rank 5 rar iy ¥ T 345

Trensury bally o [ Oh 410, (M)

Teems in coarse of colbection with other banks 1407 489 .

Hank overdraft L ] 1,832 1244
% J,ﬁ_jl'ir.ﬂﬂ {1419, TTH

B Treasury Eills;

Mot 014 13
Treasury bills Tihj 5 410,000 411LIKK

Treasury bills are debi securities Bsved by the Government of Dominica for a term of ithree (3)
meths. The weighted average effiactive interest rabe i 2004 is 568% (2013 - 397

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fEypresad o Easdera Caribbenn Dollars)

q, Deposits with Banks and Other Flnnactal Institations:

Baolp 014 20
liems in the course of collection with
olher banks Tk s do001,489 -
Flacements with banks and other
fimancinl mstiugsons 5,475 795 A | W
5 £.837.285 3046, 1 RS

The weighted average effective interest rabe in respect of mierest beanng deposiis m 2004 15
2.25% (2003 — 2.53%),

i Loans and Advances io Cusbomers:
Male nn4 3
Demanid loans 5 130,003 337 134,653,194
M-l,:-u‘lj;,.:lgc loans A BRG, 5400 A5.011. 883
bid, TEQATT | 67,765,276

Less: allowance or impairment beases
on boans and advinees 1 1, 250, SRS ) . (15361317
L4 498,972 152403 959
Current 17,747,150 18,744, 563
M ofi-curneal 130,751,822 133,619, 3%
s 48408 972 152 403 9440

The seighted average elfective imerest mbe on productive bsans stafed af amariised cost ot June 30,
2004 is 6.949% (2003 - T.62%),

.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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flvpressed i Easteray Caribbean Dollars)

i,

Allowanee for Impalrment losses on loans and advances:

Demanid lians

Al beginnimg of year

Proviskon for impainment losses

Amaoamis recovered during the year
Transfer from mortgage loans

Written=0iT during the year as unoollectible

Al the end of year

Mortgnpe loans

Al bejinnimg: of year

Provision for impairment losses

Transfer 1o demand loans

Amoants recovencd during the year
Written-of1 during the year as uncollectible

At the end of year

4 i3
15,235 559 13,370,483
424 504 1. E18, 2
190,625 | Tia33
- 184,193

(67.912) (404,95
15,786,166 15,338,350
122,758 AH7.076
206,394 e

- (384,193
EH.08T 11,158

(2.500) (1.283)
504,738 | 32,758
I, 2500, 505 15,361,317

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fEypresad o Easdera Caribbenn Dollars)

i Avallable-Tor-sale Investmenis:

014 i3
Equily secumitkes ~ at foir value:
= Listed 5 163 550 143,330
= Linlisted 00,172 1 264 Bt
5 B, 502 1,408, 2150
Movements of the Bank™s available-for-sale
mvestments wre as fxllows:
04 2013
At beginning of vear 1 40k 299 1,408, 269
I'unil:.' investment Ii-:.;u.u;lp.h.'q.l {5313“] 2
Unrealised goin/{loss) from changes in fair
vilue charge to profit and loss 15,0000 -
Realised loss on equaty invesimen {26,400 )
5 B 502 [
13 Investmment Properiies:
. Land  Factory Building Total
Cost'Vnluution:
As ot July 01, 2002 5 12161343 15,155,953 30,347 3446
Acguisition - 540,019 41,009
As o1 June 30, 2013 5 12161363 18, 727002 J0.888.365
Acquisition = 385,684 85684
As at June 30, 2014 5 12,161,363 149,112,686 31,274,044

Included in the investment propeny is land ameunting to ECSE.617,099 for which the Bank docs
not et have satisfactory tithe, as the documents 1o effect the transfer of the title are sl being
processed by the ank’s lowyers and the government authoriies,

The investment propertics are industrial sheds being held for long and short term rental for use in
the production or supply of posds or services, or administrative purposes or sabe i the ordimary
course of business; and lands held for capital appreciation or sale in the ordinary course of business,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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i gmrevard i Canireve Caridbran allars
1. Preperty, Pland and Fguipmest

Furnituie and Unimpiled Wk in

Fanit Buildings _ Sstor Vehicks  Fquipmend  Fauipmis Fregrom Total
Cmat:
Malapce - Jwss 30, 3003 % (L L AT A REE T 1408 0 B2, T 4, 717 10837, 740
Akl ituye s dranalivs - d ’ LT 191 .87 = T 00
1 hspusala 7 - . 7
Balance - Jwsss 20, 2003 % 1. 3% [H3 TA7TES0G 135 80 LS1E 3R R g 445 737 13208, 157
i
Malance - Juser 30, 2003 % | S, LR} 7,071,506 133,000 LSIL 58 B4 540 446,737 12,2005, 157
Acldrtionmi 5 - MELIET 165 ma 11472 23063 - WAL S5
Tramders 5 e . : 2,21 L) g -
Hspumals 5 - - (72,001 {100 417 (139,077} - (31 814}
alance - Jwwsr W1, 3004 % |t RS TASD, ST = 1 ATRA02 1137030 446 11 13TV 293N
P Attt Dpuiicio T — g — p—— e m——ru ——
Bakance - Juss 30, 2002 % : | 955, T 135,000 LOE0TT TS, 154 s 1885 A T
Vet ccdalins . 144 38% . 1 s 154 0185 . A
Thapumal . . b {4400 * =l Lt
Bakapce - Juse 30, 3003 % - 3 i 110 1,135,657 043 243 ) 4,4 oy
Acymmwlisnl Dopnecialion
Mabawce - S M0, 2000 g - b ] | 38 i 1125687 LS E 4.0 gal
Dprociation - [ LU e IRAT2 145 5ad 250158 - A1 AN
Tramafors L - - - s {2, - -
Dk . : {72000 R R {139,177} z ] a4
|Mabance ~ Jwesr W0, 3004 % - 2180, 8172 1.0 656 . TH e A1 7
L TR [P T
ibalapce - Jwse S0, 3004 % | i, | R 4301081 13284 L s o, 240 i 717 L
akance - Jwss M0, 2000 1 | [EY o - e 1 J@], b 48611 Tuna e

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Egprevpd i Easteror Coribdean Dallar

15 {hther Asseis;

Remt receivable
(kher receivables
Lizss nlbowvamce Tor impaimmen] |osses

Prepayments

16 Hank Overdrafi:

Noisonal Hank of Domimica

17 Mg to Customers:

Fixed deposies
Refumlable deposits
Loan prepaymends

L wrmenl
Non-carrent

d'-.'r-:hn:q al Jume 30, 3004 65 5079 (2003

DNotes
T b}

55Tl

§ An resinfed

Hild Pl

5 T2E.019 T34, 504
HEG04] 3, B52
(W3R0S} (553, 5050

1,021,065 110,781

33,168 4,301

g 1,084,333 1,109,003
014 1]

5 | =i, =0 1 232124

The overdrall facility 14 guarantead by the Goverment of Dominica i secordance with the provision
of the Loans Act, Chapler 3205 Soction 3010 of the 19590 Revised Laws of the Commonwealh of
xomimica. Interest is charged on the facility @l o e of (8%) porcent per annum.

old Hila

% L4065, 140 T L 403
2352 385 238k 155

1,075 Beh 978,080

b3 5593385 1T 538
J0E9.615 2 695 856

5 303, T T R.200,5942

% 9 393,385 10907 538

All fived deposits camry lixed interest rtes, The weighted avernge effecuve interest rte of fived

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expresaed fn Exsterer O arfbbean Dalfar)

14, Borrowed Fands:

004 FLI R
Corsbbean Developmen Hank 5 44,683,973 48,514 264
Dominica Socinl Seouriy 13,784, sl 3,480,255
Furopean Invesiment Hank 1750482 454 To] 271
Liowvermimend o [oarimeca SJQ'E.II-H S0l ] b
Kepubdic of Clhoaa 10615, G4 1,735 %21
BAMDES — Economic and Socinl Development
Bank of Vensoueln 15,594 Bni 16,272 900
Petroscanbe Fund 10 N, DK [LIREEAELN]
Matsonal Honk of Domimica o SO0 EHHD F s, 260
Carcom Development Fund & 400, MR -
5 I 18859 488 114,577,735
Currenl 10,623 340 18,345,150
Mon-gurment I8 2 36, 139 Op (132 585
& | 18859 458 114,577,735

These loans cam imderest mnging from 2% 1o 8% and are guoramicsd by the Covermmeent of Daomiinsen

L8 Oiher Liabvilities:

004 ) 2013

Agency lmbulies 5 300 4 4 X4 K10
Ideferred income - 575,511
Dividends payable 280,00 S0, 0000
Ciranis 230 230
{hhers 3. 303977 3320654
TA59.511 K643 135

L irrenl 1327 558 2143625
Mon-curreni 6, 131,953 L b T
s 7459511 5643235

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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flypreved B Eastern Caribbean Dodlar

1%, heher LEabilinkes: foomr ol

Agency lahalities are funds sxued to the Bank by the Govermment of [manica and other kocal agencics
iy b wisaead P iquialifying pisposes. The Bank carms agency fees as prescribed by contractual agreement.

{Hhers relstes io accroed Lobilitses nmpﬂhﬂl @ Tl hosacs:

Giratuity payable ]
Vacathon keave and salarics payable

IEL bonamts seouriy deposits

Cther pavables

5

2014 2013
2372839 2428854
407,583 318,738
204,352 205,658
319,203 X7, a6
3,303,977 3,320,684

20. Flduclary Activitles:

The Rank acts ax executing and collecting agent for funds used for specific purposes issued 10 the Bank
by the Cerverniment of Dominica amd ather liscal agencies, The Bank cams agency foes as prescribed by

the commeencial agreement,

2L Share Caplial:

Anithorised:
1 (L EHB M) oelanary shares withi a 55 pas valoe

Paswed and fully paid:
3,500,526 ondinary shans
6084515 ordinary shares

214 2013
S0, 0600, X000 540,000,000
17,547,631 17,547,631
0,422,574 0,422,574
47,970,208 47,970,208

Section 16A of Chapler 74:03 af the Laws of Dominica empowers the Bank to redecm its shares a1 any
time afler the expiration of len years from the dobe of issue, Shares issued b the Govemment of Doaninica

are nivl redeemable,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Evpressed in Easterar Covitbeaur Daffar

21, Shre Capltal: foom o

Based om the statutory mibes and orders Mo, 57 off 1993 of the Government of the Commonwealh of
Damimacn tithed, Tomanca Agnoulinm! Indusinal and Desvelopment Bank (Subseription and Foldimgs
of Sharcs ) Begulations 1993, the Dominica Social Securnty may subscribe one millson onbinary sharcs
w55 par value and be entitled 1o an annual dividend of not bess than 5% ol the par value of the shares

subscribed.
e Heserves:
Ax restated
2014 L I
Cienerall resenve % KRR 234 RE 24
SInIAORY Feserve T.212208 1533504
Specinl reserves 441,123 L0 68
Unrealised gain from changes in fair value 15 ) -
5 B 356,566 H.723.4%4
Moverments in reserves were as Tollows:
204 Rl R
Ceneral reserve
At beginming and end of year ] HH:.E BE. 234

Prior w July 1, 1978, the Govemment of Dominica padd certam admimsirative expenses of the Bank.
The Government decided 1o waive the amount of S88_234 due 1o it and instruceed the Bank 1o create a
E.,'rh;'ru! reserve T this amaouni,

As restated
L1 201X

SLEALLGEY Feserve
At beginming of year 5 7335584 1.2 532
Trunster from retained camings 2THA2S 257052
Al end ol year 5 T.E12.209 1811 504

This represenis bw L11]._'|-'r|..l".'|.' [25%%0 of Che net -:l.lminl.:m of the Hank for each feaincual ygr allocaled ko the
reserve accounl & required By Section 20 of Clapier 74:03 af the Laws of Dominkca Bevised Edition

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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flypreved B Eastern Caribbean Dodlar

i 8 Heserves; fooat Wl

004 213

Specinl reserves
Caribbesn  Development  Consalidsbed
Entity Proviskon
Al beginning and end of vear 5 441,122 440,022
Foreign exchange cqualizntion
An beginming of year % G, 556 G54, 508
Tramsfers from o} retamed camangs [t E, G20 14,5451
Forcign exchange loss wilization . [11,635) {8920
At end of year : I i1, 556

5 441,123 I 16T

Linder the provekenn of Canbbean Development Bank (CTE) loan 1675FR-1Y Sectson 9 {9) for agneibuiral
producteon, the Bank is requimed 1o st aside an amound representing 1073 of cameed mberest per annum on
cach sub-loan. This amount is v be wsed m such o manser as the CB may Trom dme 10 time determine.

Specia] reserves include socumulnted trunsiers rom netamed cominags based on Furopean Investiment
Bank Loan Agreement Section 6007 requiring interest received by the Bank on sub-loans in excess of 5%
peer amenim G e credited on a special accoum called Foreign Exchange Equalizntion Fund (FEEFL  The
talance om the FEEF shall aigract imencst o an annial mbe comespondimg to the monthly rate payable by
the Rark, lor deposits in Eastern Caribbean Dollars of equivabent size. The loam 1o EIB was closed as m

Tune 30, 2014,

LI E 003
Hevaluathon reserve — avallable-Tor-sale investments
Al heginming of year 5 5. NNk 5, THK}
Linrealived gain from changes in fir value 15, (i) -
At emd ol vear % 201, MR &0y

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fEvpressed i Eauern Carfbbean Dotlarsy

1 et Imtercst Ineome:
R B kL] I
Interest Income
Lioans and advanees % 11840379 12 30 384
Digpasits with hanks 213,758 20,713
12054, 137 | 2,65 6
Interest Expense
Long-term debl (4,607A477) (4,543 371)
Inlerest on depasits I;r."_i'i-.Wﬂ { 3 By
(4834.472) {4,548 (HHN)
5 T.210. 668 TAILNE
24, (hher Crperating Income:
T4 2y
Hental income From IEL operaiions 5 1. 10 47 1,05 554
Uithers T35S 205 485
Commvitment lees 302 503 263,035
Cinm on forcign exchange = 156, 504
Apency hees 119978 119298
5 1.884.315 1.937 856

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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fEvpressed i Eauern Cartbbean Dotlarsy

23, (hher Operating Expenses:

A restated

Wl 2014 1] Y

Stall cosis b 5 A 1A E JAng 022
Administrative ¢xpenses " ) o e | 1,564,659
Huilding occupancy expenses Sl 1l 555,013
Depreciation i4 42K 4358 $02 430
Factory shads cxpenscs 408,443 83204
Forerpn exchange bss Tk, TR .
Badl debl expense - 25 IHHY
% TATR. 191 6,924 537

2, Siall Cosis:

2014 R K

Salamcs aml wages < 3007 645 2,604,193
Soxcial Secunity Cosls 146,476 149 462
Caroup insurnmee 62 46X L
Ciihir seall costs 81426 719,566
£ "-.1-1 IR 3,504,122

Mpmibser |'|I'cl1|.|1-lq:-:.-m.--. kL 43

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed i Eastern Cartbbhean Dollars

ra
-l

Adminbirailve Expenses:

Legal and professional fees

Dhrectors” emodumsents & cxpenses
Advertising

Subscriptions and donathons
lelephane, postage and fax

Printing, stabionery, and office supplics
Modor vehicle expenses

Bepair and madnlenance of furmiturg and equipmend
Annual repao

Insuramoe

Miscellanoouis expenses

Diwidemds:

M4 As restated
2003

.25 SR A SER.0R]
20K, 744 173,087
184,457 220 554
11567% b AT
R AR 103 Sih
LT R&.013
48,563 41,97
41,582 47,187
14,452 4R 645
24 3 093k
Pl e 4R BEA
1, 715521 | el 2 550

Ihe Bank declared a 5% dovidemd amoumng (o 52500000 (2003 - S250)000F with respect (o the

ordinary shares held by the Dominica Social Security.

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Eapressed b Easters Caribbean Daollars

2%,

Related Party Transscibons:

A party s relaiel 10 the Bank, ift

fik

il
filii
vy
fwl

i

iy

direcily, or indirectly through ome or more intermediaries, the party controls, s comrnolled by, or is
under common contred with, the Bank (ikis melisles pareiis, subsidianies and Gellow subsidiaries g
hets an mlerest 1o tee Bank thar gives i significam influenee over the Bank; or has poamt controd over
thi Hank;

th party 15 an associake of the Hank;

the= party i& A joint venture in whech the Bank is o venlurer;

the party is o member of the key management personned of the Bank or its pareni;

thee party is o close member of the family of any ndividual relermed 1o 0n (1) of (v

the party is the entity thai s controlled, jointly controlled or significanily nfleenced by, or for
shich significant voling power m such entity resudes with, dirsatly or indircetly, any indvidual
relerred o dn (1w or (v or

the pany is a post-enployment benelit plan for the benefil of emplovees of the Bank, or af any
ety that is o related party of the Hank,

A number of banking trunsactions are entered nto with relaled parties i the normal cousse ol business,
These tramssctions were carrsed out on commercial lerms aml conditions, af market mies,

Loams anil Advances outstanding from related paries are as Tollows;

214 213

Hain Forest Trom Lid, 5 1.759.950 1.759,950
Frianctal Dals Services Limited TUAL B0 .20, b
2 69510 1350918

The aboae reloted party badomce due from Ban Forest Trom Lad, has boen classilicy os non=nccrual as
prineipal and miceest ave been in amears pass duse over mancty (90) days.

Mo provision for loan impainment has been made a3 requined by the Bank™s aceounting policies for the
amount omstanding from Kain Forsst Tram Ll An impalsmem poosvision has not been made becaise the
funds advanced were from a speeific source, the European Invesiment Bank,

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.

74 /DAIDB Annual Report 2014




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

{Expressd fn Easterm Caribbean Dhllars)

29, Helaied Party Transacibons: (conr '
The agrecmint with the l1|l'npﬁ|.|1 Invesimend Hank "'."h’."l:iﬁl;"l thad mn the evemt of 1he Bank s Taileme 6o
recover The outslanding amount from the Ban Forest Trom Lid., the amowunt funded for thes loan would
no longer ke repavable; as such the Bank 15 oot expecied 1o inewr any keses uwpon defaull of this lean,

The Bank also holds equity fnvvestments in the Rain Forssg Tram Lid. amountimg o ECSR6T 603,

Ad year-eod, directors of the Bank and companses in which they have pnomterest had lixed deposats with
the Bank of 510,000 and had loans and guaramoad loans with omsiandimg balances of 33746949,

I ME14, ihe total remimeration pakd 1o directors and key management persomne] was 51,270,682 (2013 -
SUE4 21T

The Bank's outstanding obligaisons to is reloied parties are as follows

M4 M

Domamica Socual Secunty 5 13_154.1]155 15, 48100, 254
Ciowernment of Dommicn 5208 143 ltEl'|'|l_'l,‘.l|!1-!-
5 19,052,204 20082218

A, Conlingeni Linbilities and Commiimenis:

As o wear-end, loans amd advances approved by the Hank bul not yel disbursed, amouamed 1o
approximately SHL 535 906 (0013 - 521,864 554),

il. Toumibon:

Under the provision of Chapler T4:03 Sections 32 of the Lows of Deminico, the Bank s exempbed (rom
the payvment of iBoome .

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

fdppresaed fr Eastern Caribbean Prollar

L ¥ Sabscgoent Evenis:

In July 20014, the Bank recctved correspondence from the Mimsiry of Finance of the Commonavealth
of Drminbe advising that tkey woubd offer 1o the Bank lve (31 year treasury Bills in the amoand of
S30G,935 %6 al a male not 1o exceed 3.5% in onder 1o fulfill thewr obligation o8 guarunior of the Bain

Fogesi Acrial Tram loam recelvable on the books. The trumssction is expocied o be setiled befone
Seplember MY, 2014,

Ex 8 Prior Period Adjustmeni:
The Bank reconded the flowing sdyustment n the cumment fnmancial year
(i} A write-off of STOR8.44% from Sl Advances o aoooant for remuneratbon paid to the
former Ciemeral Monager’ Consultant For the perod July 200 1 e July 2003 which was nol

retmbursed by fumiding agencics as cxpectod

(i Asoa resull the comparative figures have been nestaled do reflect the eormest balamess al
June 30, 2003, The eifect of restatemend is as follows:

& A decrease inolher nssets of $T98 18
& A decrease in Betained Eamings of 5795445

The notes on pages 30 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AlID BANK
DEPARTMENTS AND
STAFF MEMBERS

Office Of The General Manager
Mr. J. Corbett
General Manager

Mrs. L. Irish-Wade
Internal Auditor

Credit Operations Division
Mrs. M. John Rose

Executive Manager, Credit Operations
Mrs. M. Abel

Manager Credit

Mrs. P. Shillingford Chambers
Credit Officer

Mr. F. Fabien

Credit Officer

Mrs. N. Faustin

Credit Officer

Ms. E. Alfred

Credit Officer

Ms. H. Sylvester

Securities Officer

Mr. A. Thomas

Disbursement Officer

Ms. M. Robinson

Customer Service Rep.

Ms. S. Victor
Receptionist

Recoveries Unit

Ms. P. Etienne

Manager Recoveries

Mr. C. Lloyd

Senior Recoveries Officer (until December 31, 2013)
Mrs. R. Xavier

Special Operations Recoveries Officer

Ms. G. Shillingford

Recoveries Officer

Mr. K. Albert
Recoveries Officer

Corporate Services Division

Mrs. E. Harris Collymore
Executive Manager, Corporate Affairs

Mrs. J. Dechausay Titre
Special Projects/ Communications Coordinator

MIS Unit

Mrs. A. Coipel

Senior Manager, Information Systems
Mrs. L. Gonzalez-Peltier
Applications Support Analyst, MIS

Mr. K. Sylvester
Technical Officer, MIS

Industrial Estate Unit

Mr. 1. Williams

Manager, IEU (until February 7, 2014)

Mrs. R. Hyacinth

Administrative Officer/Act. Manager, IEU (from Dec. 2, 2013)
Mr. G. Eloi

Technical Officer

Mr. J. O’garro
Maintenance Officer

Legal Unit

Ms. N. Winston
Legal Secretary

Accounts And Finance Division

Ms. V. E. Abraham

Senior Manager, Finance and Accounts
Ms. C. Joseph

Assistant Manager, Finance and Accounts

Mrs. I. Bruno

Assistant Manager, Finance and Accounts
(On study leave during the year)

Ms. A. Dupigny

Senior Officer, Finance and Accounts

Mr. K. Shillingford

Senior Officer, Finance and Accounts

Mr. M. Allan
Officer Finance and Accounts

Ms. N. Laurent
Accounts Officer

Human Resource Division

Mrs. U. McDowell-Job

Senior Manager, Human Resource and Administration
Ms. R. Thomas

Assistant Manager, Human Resource and Administration/
Board Secretary

Ms. G. Edwards

Registry Officer

Mr. G. Nicholls

Office Attendant
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Mr. J. Corbett
General Manager

Mrs. Liane Irish-Wade
Internal Auditor

Ms. V. E Abraham
Senior Manager, Finance & Accounts

Mrs. R. Hyacinth
Act. Manager, IEU (from Dec. 2, 2013)

MANAGEMENT TEAM

AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

Mrs. E. Harris Collymore
Executive Manager, Corporate Affairs

Mrs. A. Coipel
Senior Manager, Information Systems

Mrs. M. Abel
Manager Credit

Mrs. M. John Rose
Executive Manager, Credit Operations

Mrs. U. McDowell-Job
Snr. Manager, Human Resource & Admin.

Ms. P. Etienne
Manager Recoveries
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CORPORATE
CONTACT DETAILS

Dominica Agricultural Industrial & Development Bank
Corner of Charles Ave and Rawles Lane, Goodwiill,
Commonwealth of Dominica

Telephone: 767-448-2853
Facsimile: 767-448-4903

E-mail: aidbank@cwdom.dm
Website: www.aidbank.com

LEGAL COUNSELS

Alick Lawrence, Chambers, Roseau
7 Old Street, Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica

Caribbean Commercial & IP Law Practitioners lip
2nd Floor Eversleigh House, Cnr. Hanover Street & Hodges Lane , P.O. Box 0069, Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica

Gerald D. Burton
Attorneys- at- Law, Burton & Knight, 33 Kennedy Ave., Box 1976, Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica

AUDITORS

KPMG
Cnr Factory Road & Carnival Gardens, P.O Box 3109, St John’s, Antigua

BANKERS

National Bank of Dominica
64 Hillsborough St., PO. Box 271,
Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica
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